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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2013
Or

O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) bthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Commission file number 1-6807

FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @wart

Delaware 56-0942963
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
10401 Monroe Road, Matthews, North Carolina 28105
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

P.O. Box 1017, Charlotte, North Carolina 28201-1017
(Mailing address)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area cq@é4) 847-6961
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(heRct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $.10 Par Value New York StBgkhange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghe#ct:None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edB#turities Act. YesX] No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yesd No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seati® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports), and (2) has been subjec
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayses No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ab site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRiie 405 of Regulation S-T during the precedigrbnths (or for such shorter period that
the registrant was required to submit and post §ilet). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgedefinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part 11l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kx]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @aocelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act.
Large accelerated fileilx] Accelerated filer (I
Non-accelerated filerd (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Benaeporting company]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Aates [ No

The aggregate market value of voting and non-vatimgmon equity held by non-affiliates computed éfgrence to the price at which the



common equity was last sold, as of the last dahefegistrant’'s most recently completed secorwhfiguarter, on March 2, 2013 , was
approximately $5.6 billion . For purposes of thisrputation only, the assumption is that all of tbgistrant’s directors, executive officers and
beneficial owners of 10% or more of the registraebmmon stock are affiliates.

The number of shares of the registrant's Commonkstaitstanding as of October 5, 2013 , was 1154882,
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The information required in Part 11l of this Forr-K is incorporated by reference to the registsadgfinitive proxy statement to be filed for
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held inuzay 2014 .
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GENERAL INFORMATION

We have provided information in this Annual RepmmtForm 10-K (this “Report”) regarding the operasmf Family Dollar Stores, Inc.,
and its subsidiaries (“we,” “Family Dollar” or th€ompany”) related to the fiscal years ended onusi@1, 2013 (“fiscal 2013 ”); August 25,
2012 (*fiscal 2012 "); August 27, 2011 (“fiscal 2D"); August 28, 2010 (“fiscal 2010 "); August,2ZB009 (“fiscal 2009 "); and anticipated
operations for the fiscal year ending on AugustZil,4 (“fiscal 2014 ). You should review the dission and analysis provided in this Report
in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial taents and the Notes to Consolidated Financiab®ets, which are included in this
Report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Report, ather public filings, press releases, or othertemitor oral communications made by
Family Dollar or our representatives, which are metorical facts, are forward-looking statemehtst tare subject to the safe harbor provisions
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform ActX#95. These forward-looking statements addressngrather things, our plans, activities or
events which we expect will or may occur in thaifetand may include express or implied projectmfn®venue or expenditures; statement
plans and objectives for future operations, gromrthitiatives; statements of future economic perfance, including, but not limited to, the
state of the economy, our capital investment amanicing plans, net sales, comparable store sabes,apenings and closings, cost of sales,
selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expeRsgross margin, income tax rates, earnings pegedishare, dividends and share
repurchases; or statements regarding the outcomneparct of pending or threatened litigation. This®ard-looking statements may be
identified by the use of the words “believe,” “platestimate,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “probably,’should,” “project,” “intend,” “continue,”
and other similar terms and expressions. Variaksyiuncertainties and other factors may causeaiual results to differ materially from thc
expressed or implied in any forward-looking stateteeFactors, uncertainties and risks that mayltresactual results differing from such
forward-looking information include, but are natnlted to, those listed in Part | — Item 1A below veell as other factors discussed throughou
this Report, including, without limitation, the facs described under “Critical Accounting Policiés'Part Il — Item 7 below, or in other filings
or statements made by us. All of the forward-logkétatements in this Report and other documendtatements are qualified by these and
other factors, risks and uncertainties.

You should not place undue reliance on the forwaotting statements included in this Report. We assuno obligation to update any
forward4ooking statements, even if experience or futurengfes make it clear that projected results expdessenplied in such statements v
not be realized, except as may be required bylia@valuating forward-looking statements, you sbatdnsider these risks and uncertainties,
together with the other risks described from timéimne in our other reports and documents filechwlie Securities and Exchange Commissiol
(“SEC").
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General Overview

We operate a chain of more than 7,900 general rardibe retail discount stores in 46 states, progidalue-conscious consumers
with a selection of competitively priced merchamedis convenient neighborhood stores. Our mercharaisortment includes Consumables,
Home Products, Apparel and Accessories, and Selaaod&lectronics. We sell merchandise at pricasdlenerally range from less than $1 to
$10.

The mailing address of our executive offices is.BB@x 1017, Charlotte, North Carolina 28201-101W aur telephone number is
(704) 847-6961. Our website address is www.famillggl@om. You can find our press releases for the pastyfaars on our website. We also
make available free of charge through our webditef @ur reports filed with or furnished to the GBpursuant to the Securities Exchange A
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), includingAonual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportd=orm 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, as somaaonably practicable after they are electrdpifiked with or furnished to the SEC. In
addition, the public may read and copy any of tleemals we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Publefd®ence Room at 100 F Street, NE,
Washington DC 20549. The public may obtain infoliorabn the operation of the Public Reference Rogradiling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The SEC maintains an internet site that castaports, proxy and information statements ahdranformation regarding issuers that
electronically with the SEC. The address of thabsite is http://www.sec.gov.

Our History

Our company was founded by Leon Levine in 1959 withopening of the first Family Dollar store in&lotte, North
Carolina. Family Dollar Stores, Inc. was incorperhin Delaware in 1969, and all then-existing coapmentities became its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. In 1970, the Company initially offééftss common stock to the public, and today the Gamy’s shares are traded on the New \
Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol ‘FDO.’

Our Mission and Strategy

Our mission is to provide our customers with a celiig place to shop, our team members with a cdimgeplace to work, and our
investors with a compelling place to invest. Ouat&gy is to provide consumers with value and coierece in a small, easy-to-shop
environment.
Our Company Goals

We believe balancing initiatives targeted to delisfeort-term financial results with investmentsttimay require longer-term
development will enable us to provide value andveoirence to value-conscious customers, help usheedifficult macro-environments and
enable us to achieve our long-term financial gdaiging fiscal 2013 , we remained focused on adhggwur four corporate goals: build

customer loyalty and experience; deliver profitaddées growth; drive continuous improvement; ancetbp diverse, high performing teams.

Build customer loyalty and experien

In today's challenging economic environment, valnd convenience continues to resonate with consurercapitalize on this
opportunity, we have launched several new initegiin fiscal 2013 and have executed on severat otti@tives designed to increase our
relevancy to customers by enhancing their shoppikpgrience and to improve their perception of @lu& and convenience proposition.

In fiscal 2011, we launched a comprehensive, nyalir store renovation program intended to increaseompetitiveness and sales

productivity by transforming our customer's shogpéxperience. In fiscal 2013 , we enhanced thignamm based on operational learnings and
customer feedback. As a part of this program, we:

» Introduced an updated store layout, which remosd Apparel and Home to drive more impulse pasels and enhance
profitability;

e Expanded other key consumable categories and drewiee intuitive merchandise adjacenc
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* Improved navigational signage and leveraged indwres that enhance customer sightlines, increapacity and simplify
restocking and recovery processes;

» Created a warmer, more inviting shopping enwviment that includes a refresh of the building facawle exterior signage and
improved store standards;

» Raised our customer service standards by strengtg our team member engagement with enhandathgaimproved
recognition programs and more consistent team mebraading.

As of the end of fiscal 2013 , more than 4,000 aes existing stores reflected these enhancementsgdXiscal 2014 , we expect to
renovate, relocate or expand approximately 85@stor this format. By the end of fiscal 201#e expect to have renovated approximately
of the chain, and plan to complete this chain-witeovation effort by the end of fiscal 2016.

We believe our business model has significant &igrowth opportunity, and we have targeted anmyzdi® footage growth of 5% to
7%. In fiscal 2013 , we opened 500 new stores aoetased our selling square footage by 6.8%. Weagdened our first store in Montana. In
fiscal 2014 , we expect to open approximately 5@ stores.

Deliver profitable sales growt

In an effort to become more relevant and to driweertrips to our stores, we successfully executedmber of merchandising
initiatives in fiscal 2012 to increase our consulealassortment. We expanded our assortment of fieogased our selection of health and
beauty aids, and added a number of new merchacatisgories, including tobacco products.

In fiscal 2013 , we leveraged these investmentscantinued our focus on increasing our relevandp wilstomers and driving sales
productivity in our stores. In September 2012, aumkched a six-year, exclusive partnership with Me_&ompany, Inc. ("McLane"), a highly
successful supply chain services company. Thisegfi@partnership allows us to offer an expanded@sient of frozen and refrigerated food,
improve our in-stock levels and distribute tobapooducts to our stores efficiently.

Reflecting customer response to the assortmengesane made in fiscal 2012 and in fiscal 2013 cainued to drive increases in
customer traffic and market share gains in key govable categories. In fiscal 2013 , our consumadaéss increased 16.9% to 72.4% of our
total sales as compared to fiscal 2012 . We expéctrend will continue in fiscal 2014 and we wgbntinue to optimize our consumables
assortment.

While sales of consumables were strong in fiscAB20our sales in more discretionary categorie®whallenged. Persistent fiscal
cliff issues, payroll tax increases, tax refundagie| and slow job growth for our core customerltedun an increased focus on basic needs ar
a reduction of discretionary spending. As a resligicretionary sales decreased 0.9% in fiscal 2818 mpared to fiscal 2012 , which had a
direct impact on gross margin. During fiscal 2018, adjusted our plans to reflect an expectatiahdiar customers' discretionary spend woul
remain constrained. We took proactive steps to avpiour performance, aggressively managing receipdsclearing unproductive
merchandise. Our goal in fiscal 2014 is to stabibrr discretionary business by providing our ausis with value, quality and a better
assortment.

Private brands remain an opportunity to increakessand profitability. In fiscal 2013 , we madether progress in increasing our
penetration of private brands. Private brands sa@sased approximately 10% in fiscal 2013, aspmamed to fiscal 2012, and private brand
consumable sales performed especially well, inangaspproximately 21% in fiscal 2013 , as compdeefiscal 2012 . In fiscal 2013, private
brands sales represented approximately 26% ofgatas and approximately 18% of total consumabéss@o drive this growth, we introduc
500 new and converted private brand consumabless3&\dur assortment in fiscal 2013 . Building ois thomentum, in fiscal 2014 we intend
to increase our penetration of private brands dwegher with a focus on quality. We expect to refreertain private brands in Home and
Apparel to offer our customers more quality andueakhile broadening their appeal. In addition, mtemd to drive greater awareness of our
private brands program through increased marketimtjvisual merchandising support.

In fiscal 2013 , we continued to expand our Gldhailircing programs as we increased merchandise gsesl{at cost) direct from the
factory by nearly 90% to approximately 5% of oumtgurchased merchandise (at cost) as compaifistéd 2012 . While we continue to rely
on third-parties to help us procure merchandiseang@erogressively moving toward a more efficigimect model. In fiscal 2013we expande
our sourcing teams in Shanghai, Luxembourg, andjBain While we
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still source the majority of our merchandise frofmir@, we expanded our business network into kegldging markets including Vietham and
Cambodia. Today, these teams are strengtheningxqrahding our supplier network. In fiscal 2014 ,plen to continue to expand our Global
Sourcing teams, develop stronger processes tausdliegrate our sourcing activities with our catggnanagement efforts, and continue to
expand our supplier network.

Drive continuous improveme

In fiscal 2013 , we continued to improve our effiety and effectiveness through a number of prdogsovement initiatives.

As a low-cost provider, protecting our strong pipegception and delivering value to our customgigitical to our long-term success.
Over the last several years, we have investedfgigntly in new merchandising processes, inclugiige management capabilities, customer
research and category management tools. In fi§d8 2we established a strategic pricing team bp e improve our price and value
perception while also increasing profitability. \Wgtimized core pricing strategies for private bgrichplemented a new zone pricing strategy
and leveraged detailed SKU analysis and testiniga@ase our profitability.

In fiscal 2013 , we launched a cross-functionabeffo simplify store-level tasks and improve sttaeel execution. Our goals were to
eliminate or limit certain tasks, improve processed systems, reduce time necessary to complé® &sd reinvest hours saved into other
higher-value tasks. We also designed and testesvgallet delivery program to enable store teamstoad and process freight faster and
more easily than traditional door-to-shelf proces$e intend to begin implementing the new pal&tv@ry program in fiscal 2014 and expect
to execute the program in all stores over the sexeral fiscal years.

While we made significant progress in most of oargm-driving initiatives, inventory shrinkage conted to be a challenge for us in
fiscal 2013 . We evaluated our security tagginggpaim and plan to introduce a new system in fis6a¥2hat is less costly to maintain and
manage. We have also implemented a new security EAffera system that is more uf@endly than our previous platform, and we areiad
additional cameras to the sales floor in new storbsse investments, combined with team stabibrafprovide a foundation to reverse the
negative inventory shrinkage trends we experiemtdidcal 2013 .

Develop diverse, hi-performing teams

We believe customer satisfaction is strongly linketh employee engagement, which is why we contilauavest in developing
diverse, high-performing teams. We continue to focn strengthening the Family Dollar culture angagiing Team Members while also
optimizing talent and building leadership capaieitit Improvements were made in key leadership rplegrams and processes, with a focus
toward improving store Team Member experience.

During fiscal 2013 , we continued to increase agaaizational focus on being more store-centric.dMated cross-functional teams
to identify opportunities to improve service torst including the pallet delivery program. In sapf this initiative the Corporate Office was
renamed the Store Support Center. This year weraisiemented a Field Human Resources (HR) Suppartconsisting of HR Managers to
provide our field leadership with support in areash as talent development and team relations.

In fiscal 2013 , we also continued to strengthenmanagement team, with key changes in Mercharglisitarketing, Store
Operations and Real Estate. We continued to refitteenhance our semi-annual succession planninggsoWe expanded our leadership
development program to stores and distributionersptvhere a talent pipeline is needed to suppmbiong growth and team stabilization. We
also introduced a centralized learning platfornotigh which all Team Members can develop their lestdp competencies, business acumen
and job skills to help them plan and advance ttaieers. We continue to invest in leadership tnginvith a strong emphasis on coaching and
communication skills to stabilize our store teawich is critical to our future success.

Overview of our Business Operations
Our Customers

Our strategy of providing customers with value andvenience continues to attract customers in @ vadge of income brackets,
ethnicity groups, and life stages. Our offerings particularly attractive to consumers in the lovlawer-middle income brackets or fixed

income households. Depending on their financialagibn and geographic proximity,
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customers rely on Family Dollar for weekly fill-shopping trips for essential needs or for periddps to stock up on household items. To
attract new and retain existing customers, we naetto focus on product quality and selection, @atwnvenient locations, improved store
standards, and a pleasant overall customer exjperien

Our Stores

A Family Dollar store is typically between 7,500de8500 square feet, with an average of approxim&t200 square feet of selling
space. Our stores generally serve customers waavithin three to five miles of the store. At thedeof fiscal 2013 , we operated 7,916 stores
totaling 56.8 million selling square feet. Approxtaly 24% of our stores were located in large urbarkets, and approximately 20% of our
stores were located in small urban markets or fidvuareas. Approximately 58% of our stores wesdrip malls, 40% were in freestanding
buildings and 2% were in downtown buildings.

The relatively small size of a Family Dollar st@léows us to select store locations that providghteorhood convenience to our
customers in each of these market areas. FamillaDgibres are generally open seven days a weelypitally operate between the hours of
8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. Our stores accept casbkshdebit cards, credit cards, and other eleatrpayment types, including food stamps.

Our Merchandise

We provide customers with a quality assortmentasfidnecessities and seasonal merchandise at aydod prices. While the
number of SKUs in a given store can vary based tiperstore's size, geographic location, merchangligiitiatives, and other factors, our
typical store generally carries approximately 6,593,000 basic SKUs, with fluctuations in seasdtesths throughout the year. The majority
our products are priced at $10 or less, with apprately 27% priced at $1 or less. Our stores opeavata self-service basis, and our low
overhead enables us to sell merchandise at avadiathoderate markup. In fiscal 2013 , we exparfatzti the number of trips that our
customers make as well as the amount spent duaictyteip, which averaged around $10.50.

We offer a focused assortment of merchandise umnaber of core categories, such as health and baalgypackaged food and
refrigerated products, tobacco products, home igasupplies, housewares, stationery, seasonalsgapgarel, and home fashions. Reflecting
trends in customer demand over the past thred fisaas, we have expanded our assortment of cortldemeerchandise in our stores. We
manage the business on the basis of one operagmyent and therefore, have only one reportable sefgrihe following table summarizes
percentage of net sales attributable to each ptaziegory over the last three fiscal years.

Product Category 2013 2012 2011

Consumables 72.2% 69.(% 66.5%
Home Products 10.1% 11.4% 12.7%
Apparel and Accessories 7.€% 8.8% 10.C%
Seasonal and Electronics 9.€% 10.8% 10.8%

The following table describes our product categoiiemore detail.
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Consumables Household chemicals
Paper products
Food
Health and beauty aids
Hardware and automotive supplies
Pet food and supplies
Tobacco

Home Products Domestics, including blankets, sheets and towels
Housewares
Giftware
Home décor

Apparel and Accessories Men’s clothing
Women'’s clothing
Boys’ and girls’ clothing
Infants’ clothing
Shoes
Fashion accessories

Seasonal and Electronics Toys
Stationery and school supplies
Seasonal goods
Personal electronics, including pre-paid cellulaomes and services

We sell high-quality national brands from leadingmafacturers including Procter & Gamble, Coca-CGlarox, Nestle, Kimberly
Clark, Unilever, Colgate Palmolive, Georgia Pagikcto-Lay, Inc., and PepsiCo, which are typicalbld at higher prices elsewhere. During
fiscal 2013 , nationally advertised brand name mendise accounted for approximately 60% of saldsrchandise sold under our private
brands program, across all merchandise categaesunted for approximately 26% of sales. Merchemndbld under other brands and labels,
or which was unlabeled, accounted for the balaficales. During fiscal 2013closeout merchandise accounted for approxim&#yof sales

We purchase merchandise from a wide variety of kengpand generally have not experienced difficuttpbtaining adequate
guantities of merchandise. In fiscal 2013 , n@l&irsupplier accounted for more than 9% of the tmendise we sold. We purchased
approximately 13% of our merchandise (at cost)uphoour relationship with McLane, which distributesrchandise from multiple
manufacturers.

In fiscal 2013 , approximately 21% of our merchaeddurchases (at cost) were manufactured ovelg&asnported approximately
11% and relied on domestic suppliers for approxétyat0% of our merchandise purchases (at cost)leMmost of our merchandise is shipped
to our distribution centers from domestic suppli@rportion of such merchandise is manufacturesideiof the United States and imported by
domestic suppliers. Our vendor arrangements prdeidpayment in U.S. dollars.

We maintain a substantial variety and depth of memdise inventory in stock in our stores (and indistribution centers for weekly
store replenishment) to attract customers and thegtshopping needs. We negotiate vendors’ tragengnt terms to help finance the cost of
carrying this inventory. We balance the value ofniteaning high inventory levels required to meestimer demand with the potential risk of
having inventories at levels exceeding such dentfaaidmay need to be marked down in price in ordesetl.

Store Operations

We operate more than 7,900 stores in 46 stategf Allir stores are managed and operated by ugré gstanager manages each store
and is responsible for hiring and training storgokayees, managing the financial performance oftbee, and providing quality customer
service. The store manager reports to a districtager or area operations manager. A district maragarea operations manager is typically

responsible for 15 to 25 stores. During fiscal 2048 single store accounted for more than onditehibne percent of sales.

Distribution and Logistic:
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During fiscal 2013 , manufacturers or distributsingpped approximately 20% of our merchandise puwehdirectly to stores. The
balance of the merchandise was shipped to oneradleuen distribution centers. To provide consisteost-effective service, we enlist the
services of several national transportation congsatiiroughout the United States as well as ourpniviate fleet of trucks to deliver
merchandise to stores from our distribution cent@rging fiscal 2013 , approximately 95% of the niendise delivered to our stores from the
distribution centers was delivered by common ottican carriers.

At the end of fiscal 2013, each distribution ceserved an average of 720 stores, compared tatédds in fiscal 2012 . Our tenth
distribution center in Ashley, Indiana, began ofieres in June 2012, and our eleventh distributienter in St. George, Utah, began operation:
in July 2013. The opening of the eleventh distiitiutenter reduced the average stem miles betwaedisiribution centers and our stores by
approximately 7% at the end fiscal 2013, as conptreéhe end of fiscal 2012.

Competition

Our industry is highly competitive. The principarapetitive factors include store locations, coneeng, price and quality of
merchandise, in-stock consistency, merchandisetassot and presentation, and customer service. Mfgete for sales and store locations in
varying degrees with international, national, regilband local retailing establishments, includingjl&r General, Dollar Tree, and Wal-Mart as
well as other discount stores, department stodsety stores, dollar stores, discount clothingepdrug stores, grocery stores, convenience
stores, outlet stores, warehouse stores and dtiressMany other large U.S. retailers have stor@seas in which we operate. We believe the
relatively small size of our stores permits usperate new stores in most areas, including ruessaand large urban markets, in locations
convenient to our target customer.

Seasonality
Historically, sales have been highest in the sedisedl quarter (December, January, and Februargdpnnection with the holiday

season, representing approximately 27% of totallahsales over the last five fiscal years. Our tgubr results also can be impacted by the
timing of certain holidays. We purchase significantounts of seasonal inventory during the firstrgaran anticipation of the holiday season.

Working Capital

We maintain an adequate level of working capitaupport our business needs and our customerstregegents. Such working capital
requirements are not, however, in the opinion ohaggment, materially different from those experashby our major competitors. We belie
our sales and payment terms are competitive iragpdopriate for the markets in which we compete.

Trademarks
We have registered with the U.S. Patent and Trade@gice the names Family Doll&and Family Dollar Store%as service marks,
and also have registered, or have filed registnadjaplications for, other names and designs asitmacks for certain merchandise sold in our

stores, such as Family GournfetFamily Pef®’, Kidgets® and Outdoors by Desigh Although in aggregate we consider our trademtrks
valuable to our operations, we do not believe augiress is materially dependent on a single tradenraany group of trademarks.

Employee!

As of August 31, 2013 , we had approximately 34,fifitime employees and approximately 24,000 piane employees. None of ¢
employees are covered by collective bargainingeagests. We consider our employee relations gegembe good.

NYSE Certification
In accordance with New York Stock Exchange (“NYSHifles, on February 15, 2013, we filed the annediftcation by our Chief
Executive Officer certifying that, as of the dafahe certification, Family Dollar was in compliamwith the NYSE listing standards. For the

fiscal year ended August 31, 2013, our Chief ExgelOfficer and our Chief Financial Officer exeedtthe certifications required by
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Whice filed as exhibits to this Report.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The risks described below could materially and asklg affect our business, financial conditionutessof operations, cash flows, and
capital investment and financing plans. We alsy bradversely affected by risks not currently knaw risks that we do not currently
consider to be material to our business.

Current economic conditions and other economic fart could adversely impact our business in varigaspects, including impacting our
customer's disposable income or discretionary spiegd

A further slowdown in the U.S. economy, delayedneenic recovery or other economic factors affectiigposable consumer income
and discretionary spending, such as increasedstaised high unemployment or underemployment lewkdiays in tax refunds, inflation,
business conditions, increased costs of essentiakses including medical care and utilities, faatl energy costs, consumer debt levels, la
available credit, and higher interest rates andadtes may affect our business adversely by redumierall consumer spending and consumer
discretionary spending. Changes in discretionagndmg may cause customers to shift spending tdygts other than those sold by us or
change the mix of products we sell to products #énatless profitable and may result in slower itegnturnover and greater markdowns on
inventory.

The current global economic uncertainty, the immdicecessions, the failure of Congress to appbudgets in a timely manner, and
the potential for failures or realignments of fica institutions and the related impact on avddatyedit may impact our suppliers, our
landlords, and our operations in an adverse manakrding, but not limited to, our inability to réiy access liquid funds or credit, increase
the cost of credit, bankruptcy of our suppliersamdlords and other impacts, which we are curramtigble to fully anticipate.

Our plans depend significantly on initiatives desigd to increase sales and improve the efficiencgsts and effectiveness of our
operations. Failure to achieve these plans couldezt our performance adversely.

Higher costs or any failure to achieve targetedltesissociated with the implementation of new prots or initiatives could advers
affect our results of operations. We are undertakivariety of operating initiatives and infrastwre initiatives including, but not limited to,
significant merchandise expansions, a comprehessire renovation program, private brand expansiod,Global Sourcing initiatives. These
changes may result in temporary disruptions tobusiness and negatively impact sales. Addition#tlg,failure to properly execute any of
these initiatives or the failure to obtain the eiptted results of such initiatives could have dvease impact on our future operating results.

We operate in a highly competitive environment armd, a result, we may not be able to compete effetior maintain or increase our sales,
market share or margins.

We operate in the highly competitive discount teteérchandise sector with numerous competitors esofmvhich have greater
resources than us. We compete for customers, nredisea real estate locations, and employees. Tmigpetitive environment subjects us to
various risks, including the ability to continuera@tiore and sales growth and to provide attractiegechandise to our customers at competitive
prices that allow us to maintain our profitabiliBrice reductions by our competitors may resuthareduction of our prices and a
corresponding reduction in our profitability.

Consolidation in our retail sector, changes inipgof merchandise or offerings of other servicgstmpetitors could have a negat
impact on the relative attractiveness of our sttwensumers. Many of our large box competitoesarrmay be developing small box formats.
A number of these smaller stores have opened aggmduce more competition, particularly in urbaarkets. Our ability to provide
convenience in a small box retail format while dffg attractive, competitively-priced products abble impacted by various actions of our
competitors that are beyond our control. See IterfiClompetition” for further discussion of our coetfiive position.

Any disruption in our ability to select, obtain, stribute, and market merchandise attractive to ausiers at prices that allow us to profitab
sell such merchandise could adversely impact ousiness.

We generally have been able to select and obtdiicisut quantities of attractive merchandise at@s that allow us to profitably sell
such merchandise. If we are unable to contintuire products attractive to our customers, tainlsuch products at costs allowing us to
sell such products at a profit, or to market suddpcts effectively to consumers, our sales orifaoility could be affected adversely. In
addition, the success of our business dependsipaur ability to identify and respond prompityevolving trends in demographics and
consumer preferences, expectations and needsrd=ailmaintain
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an attractive selection and to timely identify &eetively respond to changing consumer needsgepeetes and spending patterns could
adversely affect our relationship with customens, demand for our products and our market share.

We have substantially increased the number of duate brand items, and the program is a sizabieqgfaur future growth plans. W
believe our success in maintaining broad market@temce of our private brands depends on manyr&ételuding pricing, our costs, quality
and customer perception. We may not achieve ortaiaiour expected sales for our private brands as@, result, our business and results of
operations could be adversely impacted.

Inappropriate pricing of products may cause praslt@be less attractive to our customers. We coetio enhance our pricing
capabilities to drive customer loyalty and havelekshed a strategic pricing team to improve oluegerception and to increase profitability.
Inability to implement new pricing strategies cohlalve a negative effect on our business.

Any disruption in the supply or increase in pricimigour merchandise could negatively impact oulitglto achieve anticipated
operating results. A significant amount of our niremedise is manufactured outside the United Stateschanges in the prices and flow of tl
goods for any reason could have an adverse impastiooperations. For example, because a sulatantiount of our imported merchandise
is manufactured in China, a change in the Chinasercy or other policies could negatively impaat merchandise costs. The United States
and other countries have occasionally proposeceaadted protectionist trade legislation, which mesult in changes in tariff structures and
trade policies and restrictions that could increhsecost of or reduce the availability of certaiarchandise. Any of these or other measures ¢
events relating to suppliers and the countrieshickvthey are located, some or all of which arednelyour control, can negatively impact our
operations, increase costs and reduce our prdiitabi

In addition, we are currently enhancing our Gldbalrcing program and have formed a wholly-ownedslidry which acts as a
trading company. Our ability to find qualified suigps who meet our standards and to access protguatimely and efficient manner is a
significant challenge, especially with respectupiers located and goods sourced outside theetd@tates. Political and economic instability
in the countries in which foreign suppliers aredlied, the financial instability of suppliers, stupm' failure to meet our supplier standards, |
problems experienced by our suppliers, the avditwlof raw materials to suppliers, merchandiseliqu#ssues, currency exchange rates,
transport availability and cost, transport secuiitflation, and other factors relating to the signs and the countries in which they are located
are beyond our control. These and other factoectiffg our suppliers, our access to products analaility to transport those products could
have an adverse effect on our financial performance

Our growth is dependent upon our ability to increasales in existing stores, the success of our sewe opening program and our store
renovation program.

Our growth is dependent on both increases in salesisting stores and our ability to open profieabew stores. Sales growth in
existing stores is dependent upon factors includomgpetition, merchandise selection, store operatiand customer satisfaction. Our abilit
open profitable new stores is dependent upon faatafuding having available capital resourcesnii@ing suitable locations for new stores,
negotiating favorable leases and development agretsmcompeting against local competition, andigginame recognition in new markets.
Unavailability of attractive store locations, deddg acquisition or opening of new stores and detayunexpected costs associated with
remodeling and renovating existing stores may reglgitimpact new store growth and profitability mimodeled or renovated stores.
Additionally, difficulties in staffing and operatinboth existing and new store locations and lackustomer acceptance of stores in new mark
areas or our renovated store design may impacahulity to increase sales.

Our profitability is vulnerable to cost increasesflation and energy prices.

Future increases in our costs, such as the casenfthandise, shipping rates, freight and fuel ¢@std store occupancy costs, may
reduce our profitability. These cost changes mathbeesult of inflationary pressures that couldHer reduce our sales or profitability.
Increases in other operating costs, including chamg energy prices, wage rates and lease anty gtists, may increase our costs of sales or
operating expenses and reduce our profitability.

Our performance may be adversely impacted if we aog successful in managing our inventory balances.

Our inventory balance represented approximately 40%ur total assets as of August 31, 2013. Efficiaventory management is a
key component of our business success and prdifijafio be successful, we must maintain sufficiemtentory levels and an appropriate
product mix to meet our customers' demands, withawving those levels to increase to such an éttet the costs of storing and holding the
goods adversely impact our financial results. If louying decisions do not accurately predict custotrends or our expectations about
customer spending levels are inaccurate, we mag tratake

10




Table of Contents

unanticipated markdowns to dispose of the excasniory, which also can adversely impact our finalmesults. Additionally, we believe
excess inventory levels in stores subjects usdoilik of increased inventory shrinkage. If we moesuccessful in managing our inventory
balances and shrinkage, our results from operatindscash flows from operations may be negativiégcted.

We depend heavily on technology systems to supgdbespects of our operations; the failure of exisgj or new technology to provide
anticipated benefits could adversely affect our ults of operations.

Our business depends heavily upon the efficientadjmm of our technological resources. A failureur information technology
systems or controls could negatively impact ouragens. In addition, we continuously upgrade awrent technology or install new
technology. Our inability to implement in a timetyanner such upgrades or installations, to traireoyployees effectively in the use of our
technology, or to obtain the anticipated benefitsuwr technology could adversely impact our opersior profitability.

Operational difficulties, including those associatevith our ability to develop and operate our sterand distribution facilities, could
adversely impact our business.

Our stores are decentralized and are managed theagtwork of geographically dispersed managepersonnel. In addition, we
rely upon our distribution and logistics networkpimvide goods to stores in a timely and cost-¢iffeananner. Any disruption, unanticipated
expense or operational failure related to this @ssccould impact our store operations negatively.nvdintain a network of distribution
facilities throughout our geographic territory amdld new facilities to support our growth obje&ss Delays in opening distribution facilities
stores could adversely affect our future operatlmnslowing the unit growth, which may in turn reduevenue growth. Adverse changes ir
cost of operating distribution facilities and strsuch as changes in labor, utility and otheratpeg costs, could have an adverse impact o
financial performance.

Changes in and our compliance with state or fedelagjislation or regulations could impact our operans.

We employ more than 58,000 team members and amsedpo the risk of federal and state legislatanticularly related to our team
members, which may negatively impact our operati@ignges in federal or state wage requirementslogie rights, health care, and social
welfare or entitlement programs, such as healthrarxce, paid leave programs, or other changes ikplaze regulation or tax laws, could
adversely impact our ability to achieve our finahtargets. Changes in other regulatory areas, asiconsumer credit, privacy and
information security, product safety, supply cha@amsparency or environmental could cause our esggeto increase. In 2010, Congress
enacted comprehensive health care reform legislattich, among other things, includes guarantesérame requirements, eliminates pre-
existing condition exclusions and annual and lifistimaximum limits, restricts the extent to whichigies can be rescinded, and imposes new
and significant taxes on health insurers and health benefits. Due to the breadth and complefithehealth care reform legislation, the
current lack of implementation regulations andriptetive guidance, and the phased-in nature ointipdementation, it is difficult to predict the
overall impact of the health care reform legislatam our business over the coming years. Adveffsetsfof the health care reform legislation
include increased costs, exposure to expandeditijadnnd new requirements for us to revise waywlrich we conduct business.

Our business is subject to federal, state, locdliaternational laws, rules and regulations, suetvage and hour laws, anti-corruption
laws, import and export laws, unclaimed propertydand many others. The complexity of the regujaémvironment in which we operate and
the related cost of compliance are both increadirgto legal and regulatory requirements, increaséorcement and our ongoing expansio
our Global Sourcing operations. In addition, assult of operating in multiple countries, we mustnply with multiple foreign laws and
regulations that may differ substantially from ctryrto country and may conflict with correspondidgs. laws and regulations. We may als
subject to investigations or audits by governmeatgihorities and regulatory agencies, which camorcthe ordinary course of business or
which can result from increased scrutiny from aipalar agency towards an industry, country or ficac If we fail to comply with laws, rules
and regulations or the manner in which they arerpreted or applied, we may be subject to governiorcement action, class action
litigation or other litigation, damage to our regiion, civil and criminal liability, damages, finaad penalties, and increased cost of regulaton
compliance, any of which could adversely affect @maults of operations and financial performance.

We rely on suppliers, third-party distributors arahrriers whose operations are outside our contrahy failure by them to deliver products
in a timely manner may damage our reputation andut cause us to lose customers.

11




Table of Contents

We rely on arrangements with third-party distribbatand carriers, such as independent shipping coieméeor timely delivery of
products to stores and distribution centers througthe country. As a result of our reliance ond#party distributors and carriers, we are
subject to carrier disruptions and increased ahststo factors beyond our control, including labwikes, inclement weather, trade restrictions
and increased fuel costs. During fiscal 2013, wadhed an exclusive six-year agreement with McLarlarge supply chain services company
that serves as a principal distributor for a paortdd our merchandise, including tobacco productsranst refrigerated and frozen items. If the
services of any of these third-parties become igiaatory, we may experience delays in meetingomstomers' product demands and we may
not be able to find a suitable replacement on aljirbasis or on commercially reasonable terms. failyre to deliver products in a timely
manner may damage our reputation and could causelose customers.

Our largest supplier accounted for almost 9% ofroarchandise purchases, and we distributed apped&iyn13% of our merchandise
through our relationship with McLane. We have nqiexienced difficulty in obtaining sufficient qudtigs of core merchandise and believe, if
one or more of our current sources of supply becama@ailable, we would generally be able to ob#diarnative sources without experiencing
a substantial disruption of our business. Howesech alternative sources could increase our medib@icosts and reduce the quality of our
merchandise, and an inability to obtain alternasiwarces could adversely affect our sales.

Product and food safety concerns and the effectsegfislation and regulations on product and foodfety and quality could adversely affe
our sales and results of operations.

Federal or state legislation and regulations raggrdroduct and food quality and safety may negdyivmpact our operations. We
may be subject to product liability claims from tamers or actions required or penalties assessgdwmrnment agencies relating to products,
including food products that are recalled, defextiv otherwise alleged to be harmful. Such clairay result from tampering by unauthorized
third-parties, product contamination or spoilagejuding the presence of foreign objects, subswraemicals, other agents, or residues
introduced during the growing, storage, handlind ansportation phases. All of our vendors and f®ducts must comply with applicable
product and food safety laws. Additionally, any mhes in product safety or quality legislation ayuiations may lead to product recalls and
disposal or write-off of merchandise inventoriesall as certain fines or penalties and reputatidamage. Our inability to comply on a
timely basis with regulatory requirements or to@xe product recalls in a timely manner, could aésult in substantial fines or penalties,
which could have an adverse effect on our finarreialilts. In addition, negative customer percepgti@yarding the safety of the products we
sell could cause us to lose market share to oupetitars. If this occurs, it may be difficult fostio regain lost sales.

Adverse impacts associated with legal proceedings elaims could negatively affect our busine:

We are involved in a number of legal proceedingiclvinclude employment, tort, real estate, comnagreind other litigation. Certain
of these lawsuits, if decided adversely to us ttexbby us, may result in liability material toroesults of operations, financial condition and
liquidity. Nationally, the number of employmergtated class actions filed each year has contitu@ttrease, and recent changes and prog
changes in federal and state laws may cause ctainme even more. We are currently a defendantimerous employment cases containing
class-action allegations, including those in whiud plaintiffs have alleged violations of federatisstate wage and hour laws. The cost to
defend these class-action lawsuits may be signifid@laintiffs in these types of cases may seevery of very large or indeterminate
amounts, and the magnitude of the potential Idssimg to these lawsuits may remain unknown forssaifitial periods of time. In addition,
certain of these lawsuits, if decided adverselysor settled by us, may result in liability matétd our financial statements as a whole or may
negatively affect our operating results if changesur business operations are required. Therenadgobe adverse publicity associated with
litigation that could negatively affect customergeption of our business, regardless of whetheallegations are valid or whether we are
ultimately found liable. As a result, litigation gnadversely affect our business, financial conditmd results of operations. See Note 12 to th
Consolidated Financial Statements included inRa@port for further details regarding certain ofsta@ending matters.

If we are unable to secure our customers' confidethtand credit card information, or other privateata relating to our employees, supplie
or the Company, we could be subject to negativeligitly, costly government enforcement actions oiivate litigation, which could damage
our business reputation and adversely affect oupfitability.

The protection of our customer, employee and Complata is critical to us. We have procedures adkrtelogy in place to safeguard
our customers' debit and credit card informatiam, @mployees' private data, suppliers' data, aadCttmpany's records and intellectual
property. Despite these measures, we may be viliesti@ and unable to detect and appropriatelyamdpo, data security breaches and data
loss, including cyber-security attacks. If we expece a data security breach of any kind, we cbaléxposed to negative publicity,
government enforcement actions, private litigation,
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costly response measures. In addition, our reputatithin the business community and with our costs may be affected, which could re:
in our customers discontinuing the use of debiredit cards in our stores or not shopping in ¢ores altogether. This could cause us to lose
market share to our competitors and could havedaarae effect on our financial results.

Inability to attract and retain qualified employeeparticularly field, store and distribution centananagers, and to control labor costs, cot
adversely affect our business.

Our growth could be adversely impacted by our ilitglio attract and retain qualified employeeshs store operations level, in
distribution facilities, in sourcing offices, antthe corporate headquarters (the "Store Suppornte€g level, at costs which allow us to
profitably conduct our operations. Various othextdas, such as overall labor availability, wagesatunion organizing activity, regulatory or
legislative impacts, and various benefit costs d@a@lilimpact our ability to attract and retain eoy#es negatively and may affect our results o
operations adversely.

Our success depends on our executive officers atittokey personnel. If we lose key personnel or ar@ble to hire additional qualified
personnel, our business could be harm

Our future success depends to a significant demuake skills, experience and efforts of our exweudfficers and other key
personnel. The loss of the services of any of @acetive officers could have an adverse effectuwnoperations and business continuity. Our
future success will also depend on our abilityttoaat and retain qualified personnel, as a faitorettract these key personnel could have an
adverse effect on our operations. We do not cugremtintain key person life insurance policies witlspect to our executive officers or key
personnel.

We are exposed to the risk of natural disastersuanal weather, pandemic outbreaks, global politi@lents, war, and terrorism which cot
disrupt business and result in lower sales, incredoperating costs and capital expenditures.

Our Store Support Center, store locations, distidioucenters and sourcing offices, as well as gedfour vendors and customers, are
located in areas which could be subject to natliszisters such as floods, hurricanes, tornadoeartirquakes. Adverse weather conditions or
other extreme changes in the weather, includingltieg electrical and technological failures, masrdpt our business and may adversely a
our ability to sell and distribute products.

In addition, we operate in markets that may beejutszle to pandemic outbreaks, war, terrorist actisruptive global political
events, such as civil unrest in countries in whiah suppliers are located. Our business may beddhihour ability to sell and distribute
products is impacted by any such events, any ofkvbould influence customer trends and purchasg sy negatively impact our net sales,
properties or operations. Such events could rasplysical damage to one or more of our propgrtiee temporary closure of some or all of
our stores, distribution centers, or sourcing eSicthe temporary lack of an adequate work for@erimarket, temporary or long-term disruption
in the transport of goods, delay in the delivergobds to our distribution centers or stores, giom of our technology support or information
systems, fuel shortages or dramatic increasesimpfices, which increase the cost of doing businagy of these factors, or combination
thereof, could adversely affect our operations.

Our current insurance program may expose us to upexted costs and negatively affect our financialfoemance.

We use a combination of third-party insurance aiflissurance to provide for potential liabilityrfasorkers' compensation,
automobile and general liability, property, diracamd officers' liability, and employee health chamefits. Any actuarial projection of losses is
subject to a high degree of variability. Changekegal claims, trends and interpretations, varigbih inflation rates, changes in the nature anc
method of claims settlement, benefit level chardyesto changes in applicable laws, insolvency sdiiance carriers, and changes in discount
rates could all adversely affect our financial dtind, results of operations, or cash flows.

Failure to comply with our debt covenants could afsely affect our capital resources, financial coitidn and liquidity.

Our debt agreements contain certain restrictiveenawmts, which impose various operating and findmegirictions on us. Such
restrictions include, but are not limited to, a solidated debt to consolidated capitalization raiixed charge coverage ratio, and a priority
debt ratio. Our failure to comply with the restivet covenants in our debt agreements, as a refsoitteoor more of the factors listed in this
section, could result in an event of default, whi€not cured or waived, could result in us havingepay our borrowings before their due
dates. If we are forced to refinance these borrgsvion less favorable terms or if we were to expegdifficulty in refinancing the debt prior
maturity, our results of operations or financial
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condition could be harmed. In addition, if we arelefault under any of our existing or future diagilities, we will be unable to borrow
additional amounts under those facilities to thieexthat they would otherwise be available.

Our ability to obtain additional financing on favable terms, if needed, could be adversely affettgdolatility in the capital markets.

We obtain and manage liquidity from the positivefclow we generate from our operating activitind aur access to capital mark
including our credit facilities with a consortiurilmanks. There is no assurance that our abilightain additional financing through the capital
markets, if needed, will not be adversely impadig@conomic conditions. Tightening in the creditrkegs, low liquidity and volatility in the
capital markets could result in diminished avaliabbf credit, higher cost of borrowing and lackaonfidence in the equity market, making it
more difficult to obtain additional financing orrtes that are favorable to us.

New accounting guidance or changes in the intergagbn or application of existing accounting guidarccould adversely affect ot
financial performance.

New accounting guidance may require systems aref atianges that could increase our operating eost®r change our financial
statements. For example, implementing future adiogiguidance related to leases, contingencieso#tmat areas impacted by the current
convergence project between the Financial Accogritandards Board (“FASB”) and the Internationatéunting Standards Board (“IASB”)
could require us to make significant changes td@agse management system or other accounting systedncould result in changes to our
financial statements.

Unanticipated changes in the interpretation oriappbn of existing accounting guidance could resumaterial charges or
restatements of our financial statements, which fogier result in litigation or regulatory actiondich could have an adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None noted.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We operate a chain of self-service retail discatiotes. As of October 5, 2013 , there were 7,96&stin 46 states and the District of
Columbia as follows:

Texas 1,01¢ Massachusetts 111
Florida 57C Arkansas 11C
Ohio 472 New Mexico 11C
Michigan 411 Maryland 10z
North Carolina 411 California 96
Georgia 39C Minnesota 73
New York 331 Utah 66
Pennsylvania 302 Maine 61
Louisiana 282z Connecticut 58
lllinois 24€ Kansas 51
Tennessee 24& ldaho 43
Virginia 244 Nevada 43
South Carolina 222 lowa 35
Indiana 212 New Hampshire 35
Kentucky 211 Nebraska 32
Alabama 16€ Wyoming 29
Mississippi 157 Rhode Island 27
Arizona 152 South Dakota 25
Wisconsin 141 Delaware 23
Colorado 134 North Dakota 17
Oklahoma 131 Vermont 15
West Virginia 11¢ District of Columbia 3
Missouri 115 Montana 1
New Jersey 112

As of October 5, 2013 , we had, in the aggregqteraximately 68.4 million square feet of total gt@pace (including receiving rooms
and other non-selling areas) and approximately Biillibbn square feet of selling space.

The number of stores we operated at the end of @amtr last five fiscal years was:

Number of

Stores at

Fiscal Year Year End
2009 6,65¢
2010 6,78t
2011 7,02:
2012 7,44:
2013 7,91¢

During fiscal 2013 , we opened 500 stores, clogest@res, and renovated, relocated or expandedt®8es. From August 31, 2013,
through October 5, 2013 , we opened 47 new stolesed no stores, and renovated, relocated or eplarO stores.

As of October 5, 2013 , we owned 278 of the tot863 stores we operate. Most of our leases haugtél term between five and
fifteen years and provide for fixed rentals, andstraff our leases require additional payments baped a
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percentage of sales, property taxes, insuranceipnesnor common area maintenance charges. Of 6867eased stores at October 5, 2013,
all but 489 leases grant us options to renew fditahal terms, in most cases for a number of ssgige five-year periods.

We own our Store Support Center and a distributemter located on a 108-acre tract of land in Matth) North Carolina, just outside
of Charlotte, in three buildings containing approaiely 1.24 million square feet. We use approxifged80,000 square feet for the distribution
center, which includes receiving, warehousing, ginig, and storage facilities, and we use appro»iye810,000 square feet for the Store
Support Center.

We also own ten additional full-service distributioenters, described in the table below:

Facility Size

Distribution Center Land Building Date Operational

West Memphis, AR 75 acre! 850,000 sq. fi April 1994
Front Royal, VA 108 acre 907,000 sq. fi January 199
Duncan, OK 85 acre! 907,000 sq. fi July 199¢
Morehead, KY 94 acre! 907,000 sq. fi June 200!
Maquoketa, IA 74 acre! 907,000 sq. fi March 200z
Odessa, TX 89 acre: 907,000 sq. fi July 200z
Marianna, FL 76 acre! 907,000 sq. fi January 200
Rome, NY 87 acre: 907,000 sq. fi April 2006
Ashley, IN 89 acre! 814,019 sq. fi June 201
St. George, UT 88 acre! 814,019 sq. fi July 201z

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Information for this item is included in Note 12ttee Consolidated Financial Statements includgtlimReport, and incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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Executive Officers of the Company
The following information is furnished with respdoteach of the executive officers of Family Dol&r of October 5, 2013 .

Name Position and Office Age
Howard R. Levine Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 54
Michael K. Bloom President and Chief Operating Officer 53
Jeffrey W. Macak Executive Vice President - Supply Chain 49
Barry W. Sullivan Executive Vice President - Store Operations 49
Mary A. Winston Executive Vice President - Chief Financial Officer 52
James C. Snyder, Jr. Senior Vice President - General Counsel and Segreta 49
Bryan E. Venberg Senior Vice President - Human Resources 45

Mr. Howard R. Levine was employed by the Company in various capacitiekeé Merchandising Department from 1981 to 1987,
including employment as Senior Vice President -diandising and Advertising. From 1988 to 1992, Mivine was President of Best Price
Clothing Stores, Inc., a chain of ladies' appat@les. From 1992 to April 1996, he was self-emptbgie an investment manager. He rejoined
the Company in April 1996 and was elected Vice ideg - General Merchandise Manager: Softlinesj@erice President - Merchandising
and Advertising in September 1996; President aridf@perating Officer in April 1997; Chief Execué\Officer in August 1998; and
Chairman of the Board in January 2003. He is timea$d_eon Levine, the founder and former Chairmathe Board of the Company.

Mr. Michael K. Bloom was employed by the Company as President and Olpiefating Officer of the Company in September 2011.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Bloom served azé&utive Vice President - Merchandising, Supply iGhi&larketing and Advertising for
CVS Caremark Corporation, a pharmacy healthcareiggo since June 2006. Mr. Bloom began his 20-geager with CVS Caremark in store
operations and progressed through a number ofigasitvith increasing responsibility including cadeg manager, Vice President - Consumer
Healthcare, and Senior Vice President - MerchangidBefore joining CVS, Mr. Bloom spent ten yeassaananager/executive with the
Virginia-based People's Drug Stores and the Flatidaion of Toronto-based Shopper's Drug Mart.

Mr. Jeffrey W. Macak was employed by the Company as Executive Vice éeasi Supply Chain in September 2013. Prior toijgj
the Company, Mr. Macak served as Vice Presideribb& Supply Chain for Bed Bath and Beyond Inc.johtoperates a chain of retail stores
under the names Bed Bath & Beyond, Cost Plus Wdddket, World Market Stores, Christmas Tree Shéfamon, Harmon Face Values and
buybuy BABY, since 2000.

Mr. Barry W. Sullivan was employed by the Company as Vice Presidentre ®perations in September 2002 and was promoted to
Senior Vice President - Store Operations in May=2&0d to Executive Vice President - Store OperatinrOctober 2007.

Ms. Mary A. Winston was employed by the Company as Executive Vice éeasi Chief Financial Officer in April 2012. Prity
joining the Company, Ms. Winston served as SenioeVresident and Chief Financial Officer of Gigale, Inc., a food retailer and fo
distributor, since 2008. She was President and deuof WinsCo Financial, LLC, a financial solutiot@nsulting firm, from 2007 to 2008 and
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Fiah@ifficer of Scholastic Corporation, a childreplsblishing and media company, from
2004 to 2007. Ms. Winston has also served as aRfiesident, Treasurer, and then Controller of \dist€orporation, an automotive parts
supplier, and as a Vice President, Global Finar@jarations, of Pfizer Inc., a global pharmacelitoapany. She has also been a director of
Dover Corporation, a diversified manufacturing camyp, since 2005 and is the chair of its Audit Cotteeri, and a director of Plexus
Corporation, an electronic manufacturing serviaaagany, since 2008 and is a member of its Audit @dtee.

Mr. James C. Snyder, Jr., was employed by the Company as Senior Vice ReasidGeneral Counsel and Secretary in April 2009.
Prior to his employment by the Company, he was eygal by The Home Depot, Inc., a chain of home im@neent stores, from July 2001 to
March 2009, where his last position was Vice Prsicind Associate General Counsel for Legal ankl ReEnagement.

Mr. Bryan E. Venberg was employed by the Company as Senior Vice Presiddaman Resources in February 2008. Prior to his
employment by the Company, he was employed by SB@hM multimedia retailer, from May 2004 to November 2007, reh@s last positio
was Senior Vice President - Operations, Customer&eand Human Resources.

All executive officers of the Company are electadually by, and serve at the pleasure of, the Bo&mirectors until their successors
are duly elected.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the NYSE under ttieetisymbol FDO. At October 5, 2013 , there we¥Q,holders of record of our
common stock. The accompanying tables give the &ighlow sales prices of our common stock and ividehds declared per share for each
quarter of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 . In fise@lL3 and 2012 , dividends were paid in each quaatet we expect that dividends will continue
to be declared quarterly for the foreseeable futtefer to Note 14 of the Consolidated Financiat&hents included in this Report for
additional information on equity securities.

Market Prices and Dividends

Dividends
2013 High Low Declared Dividends Paid
First Quarter $ 70.17 % 61.2¢ $ 0.21 $ 0.21
Second Quarter 72.5¢ 54.0¢ 0.21 0.21
Third Quarter 65.82 57.5( 0.2¢ 0.2€
Fourth Quarter 74.4¢ 59.3( 0.2¢ 0.2¢€

Dividends
2012 High Low Declared Dividends Paid
First Quarter $ 60.5: $ 47.9¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢
Second Quarter 59.9¢ 53.0¢ 0.21 0.1¢
Third Quarter 70.0C 53.4: 0.21 0.21
Fourth Quartef? 74.7¢ 61.67 — 0.21
(1) On September 4, 2012, subsequent to the end af 842, the Board of Directors declared a regglarterly cash dividend on the Company’s commoaokstd $0.21 per share, payable Monday,

October 15, 2012, to shareholders of record atliee of business on Friday, September 14, 2012.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth information with pest to purchases of shares of our common stocle madng the quarter ended
August 31, 2013, by us, on our behalf or by arffili@ed purchaser” as defined by Rule 10b-18(a}{Bthe Exchange Act.

Total Number of

Shares Purchased Maximum Number of
as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet Be

Total Number of Average Price Announced Plans Purchased Under the

Period Shares Purchased  Paid per Share or Programs @ Plans or ProgramsY®
June (6/2/2013-7/6/2013) —  $ — = 5,809,94!
July (7/7/2013-8/3/2013) — — — 5,254,97.
August (8/4/2013-8/31/2013) — — . 5,208,46!
Total — 3 — — 5,208,46!

1) On September 28, 2011, we announced that the Bdd@dectors authorized the purchase of up to $2flon of our outstanding common stock. On Janulify2013, we announced that the Board of

Directors authorized the purchase of up to an amfdit $300 million of the Company’s outstanding eoon stock. As of August 31, 2013, the Company$&iD.8 million remaining under current
authorizations.

) Remaining dollar amounts are converted to sharieg tise closing stock price as of the end of teedi month.

See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrinatuded in this Report for more information retiag share repurchases.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

This information will be included in our proxy statent to be filed for the Annual Meeting of Stockless to be held in January 2014,
under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Infdrard and is incorporated herein by reference.

Stock Performance Graph

The following graph sets forth the yearly perceetaljange in the cumulative total shareholder redurour common stock during the
five fiscal years ended August 31, 2013 , compavi¢hl the cumulative total returns of the S&P 508dr and the S&P General Merchandise
Stores Index. The comparison assumes that $100wested in Family Dollar common stock on Septenihe2008, and in each of the
foregoing indices on August 31, 2008, and thatddiids were reinvested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Family Dollar Stores, Inc., the S&P 500 Index and the S&P General
Merchandise Stores Index
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share, store, August 31, August 25, August 27, August 28, August 29,
and net sales per square foot data) 2013* 2012 2011 2010 2009
Net sales $ 10,391,45 $ 9,331,00! $ 8,547,83 $ 7,866,97 $ 7,400,601
Cost of sale8) 6,836,71. 6,071,05! 5,515,54 5,058,97. 4,822,40:
Gross profit 3,554,74! 3,259,94 3,032,29! 2,808,001 2,578,20!
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,866,78! 2,584,23 2,409,52; 2,234,34 2,122,92!
Litigation charge? — 11,50( — — —
Operating profit 687,95 664,21. 622,77. 573,65: 455,28(
Income before income taxes 690,69 663,93t 617,15t 563,85¢ 450,92!
Income taxes 247,12 241,69¢ 228,71: 205,72 159,65¢
Net income $ 443,57" 422,241 388,44! 358,13! 291,26t
Diluted net income per common share $ 3.8¢2 $ 3.56¢ $ 3.12 $ 2.62 $ 2.07
Dividends declared per common share $ 0.94 $ 0.6( $ 0.69¢ $ 0.6( $ 0.5¢
Cash dividends paid per common share $ 0.94 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.67 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.52
Cash dividends paid $ 108,33: $ 91,39( $ 83,43¢ $ 78,911 $ 72,73t
Comparable store sales growth 3.C% 4.7% 5.5% 4.8% 4.0%
Ending selling square feet 56,84t 53,20" 49,99¢ 48,22¢ 47,12(
Net sales per square fd6t $ 18¢ $ 181 $ 174 $ 165 $ 15¢
Consumables sales 72.4% 69.(% 66.5% 65.1% 64.4%
Home products sales 10.1% 11.2% 12.7% 13.2% 13.4%
Apparel and accessories sales 7.€% 8.8% 10.C% 10.7% 11.2%
Seasonal and electronics sales 9.9% 10.8% 10.8% 11.(% 11.(%
Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 471,97: $ 369,37 $ 528,06 $ 591,53¢ $ 529,19

Investing activities (314,59) (198,31) (280,419 (306,94 (109,35)

Financing activities (108,716 (220,13) (488,99 (340,72) (139,45¢)
Total capital expenditures (744,42% (603,31 (345,269 (212,43} (155,40)
Total proceeds from sale-leaseback 345,24¢ 359,66: — — —
Total repurchases of common stock (74,95¢) (191,57) (670,46¢) (332,189 (71,067
Total assets 3,709,86. 3,373,06! 2,996,20! 2,968,14! 2,864,11.
Working capital 776,78 702,51: 516,78¢ 641,52 718,50¢
Long-term investment securities 22,977 23,72 107,45t 147,10t 163,54!
Long-term debt 516,47! 532,52( 548,57( 250,00( 250,00(
Shareholders’ equity $ 1,599,05! $ 1,297,62 $ 1,087,07. $ 1,421,55. $ 1,440,06!
Stores opened 50C 47E 30C 20C 18C
Stores closed 26 56 62 70 96
Number of stores—end of year 7,91¢ 7,442 7,02 6,78t 6,65¢
* Fiscal 2013 contains 53 weeks. All other fiscalrggaesented include 52 weeks.

(1) Included in Cost of sales for fiscal 2013 was a-time $5.0 million favorable accounting adjustmesiated to certain vendor allowances.
(2) Fiscal 2012 includes the impact of a litigation rgeaof $11.5 million (approximately $0.06 per dédtshare) recorded in the fourth quarter of fi2€dI2.

(3) Comparable store sales growth describes the chiang sales in any period for stores that areidensd comparable to the prior period. Comparatieessales include net sales at stores that haer dygen
more than 13 months. A store becomes comparablirshealendar week it has sales after 13 monttizeing opened. Stores that have been renovatiedated, or expanded are included in the comparable
store sales calculation to the extent they hadsshleng comparable weeks in each year.

(4) Net sales per square foot was calculated basedtairstles for the preceding 12 months as of théngrdate of the reporting period divided by therage selling square footage during the periodudticg the
end of the fiscal year, the beginning of the figazdr, and the end of each of our three interigefiguarters. Comparable store sales represechtirge in sales attributable to stores open in thetlcurrent
and prior period, whereas sales per square footsepts total net sales divided by the averagedeliang square footage. As a result, all storesicluded in the sales per square foot calculaticcluding
stores without a full year of sales.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion summarizes the signifidastors affecting our consolidated results of aiens and financial condition for
fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 , and fiscal 2011 , and expectations for fiscal 2014 . You should rdad tliscussion in conjunction with our
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Not€otwsolidated Financial Statements, which are iredud this Report. Our discussion
contains forwardeoking statements which are based upon our cuengmectations and which involve risks and uncetitzén Actual results ar
the timing of events could differ materially frommose anticipated in these forward-looking statesiasta result of a number of factors,
including those set forth in the “Cautionary Sta¢emRegarding Forward-Looking Statements” in th@&al Information section of this
Report and the “Risk Factors” listed in Part |—Ités of this Report.

Our fiscal year generally ends on the Saturdayesto® August 31 of each year, which generallylteswm an extra week every six
years. Fiscal 2013 was a-week year. Fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 were 52kwears. Fiscal 2014 will be a 52-week year.

Executive Overview

We operate a chain of more than 7,900 general raedibe retail discount stores in 46 states, progidonsumers with a selection of
competitively priced merchandise in convenient hbarhood stores. Our merchandise assortment inelGdasumables, Home Products,
Apparel and Accessories, and Seasonal and ElectroMe classify the combination of Home Producfspakel and Accessories, and Seasone
and Electronics as "Discretionary." We sell merchsm at prices that generally range from less $iato $10.

The current macro-economic environment continueéspact our financial results. During fiscal 201@uy customers continued to
face increased financial pressures, including oot high unemployment rates, increased payradistand volatility in gasoline prices. In
fiscal 2013, customers focused their spending @essities, with sales in Consumables increasingfd@nd sales in Discretionary categories
decreasing 0.9% as compared to fiscal 2012 . Téigltcontinues to pressure our profitability. Hoagwur investments to increase our
relevancy to customers have resulted in markeeshains.

During fiscal 2013 , as compared with fiscal 20D2ir, net sales increased 11.4% to $10.4 billion,n@t income increased 5.1% to
$443.6 million, and our diluted net income per casnnshare increased 7.0% to $3.83. Comparable sidee (stores open more than 13
months) for fiscal 2013 increased 3.0% compared fistal 2012 . Consistent with the National Refatleration Calendar, fiscal 2013
included 53 weeks as compared to 52 weeks in fi3@B2 . The additional week accounted for approtege189 million in net sales and
approximately $0.07 per diluted share during fie3 .

During fiscal 2013 , we remained focused on achigwaur four corporate goals: build customer loyaltyl experience; deliver
profitable sales growth; drive continuous improveainand develop diverse, high performing teams.

* We achieved our new store opening goal and apb@e stores in fiscal 2013ncluding our first store in Montar

*  We renovated, relocated or expanded 830 starésriour comprehensive store renovation progranghnil intended to increase our
competitiveness and sales productivity by transfiognour customer's shopping experience. In fis6al®2, we enhanced this program
based on learnings and customer feedback.

* We opened our eleventh distribution center inG&orge, Utah, which reduced the average stensdéveen our distribution centers
and our stores by approximately 7% at the endIf&@43, as compared to the end of fiscal 2012.

*  We expanded our teams in Shanghai, Luxemboutd@angkok as part of our Global Sourcing prograhrotigh this program, we
increased merchandise purchases (at cost) dimruttfie factory by nearly 90% to approximately 5%of total merchandise
purchases (at cost).

* We launched a six-year exclusive partnership WitLane, a highly successful supply chain serviamapany, to allow us to offer an
expanded assortment of frozen and refrigeratedsfdatprove our in-stock levels, and distribute twimaproducts to our stores
efficiently.

*  We established a strategic pricing organizatioaptimize core pricing strategies for privaterus, implement a new zone pricing
strategy, and leverage detailed analysis and tggticrease our profitability.
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* We increased our organizational focus on beingenstore-centric by creating cross-functional teaodentify opportunities to
improve service to stores, including our planneliepdelivery program which is expected to launctiiscal 2014. In support of this
initiative the Corporate Office was renamed ther® Support Center.

Fiscal 2014 Outlook

Building on the improvements we made over the pagéral years, we plan to continue to execute omndiatives designed to
increase our relevancy with customers, deliverifaolie sales growth and strengthen our value anglesdence proposition in fiscal 2014 .

During fiscal 2014 , we expect to open approximab&l5 new stores and renovate, relocate, or exppptbximately 850 stores. By
the end of fiscal 2014 , we expect to have renavapproximately 75% of the chain and we plan to glete this chain-wide renovation by the
end of fiscal 2016. We have also designed anddesteew pallet delivery program to enable storenteto unload and restock merchandise
faster, which we expect to begin implementing dyifiscal 2014 . Capital expenditures for fiscal 2@te expected to be between $550 and
$600 million.

During fiscal 2013 , we adjusted our plans to ifen expectation that our customers' discretiospgnd would remain constrained.
We took proactive steps to improve the performarfasur discretionary businesses by aggressivelyagiag receipts and clearing
unproductive merchandise. Our goal in fiscal 231t stabilize our discretionary businesses byiping our customers with value, quality &
a better assortment. In addition, we will continai@ptimize our assortment of Consumables merclsartdi continue to respond to our
customers needs.

In fiscal 2013 , we introduced 500 new and convepievate brand consumable SKUs to our assortniefiscal 2014 we expect to
build on this momentum to expand private brandsuiting a refresh of certain private brands in Hand Apparel to offer our customers
more quality and value while broadening their appé& intend to drive greater awareness of ourgteibrands program through increased
marketing and visual merchandising support.

Global Sourcing also remains an opportunity togase profitability. In fiscal 2013 , we expanded saurcing teams in Shanghai,
Luxembourg and Bangkok. While we still source thegarity of our merchandise from China, we expandedbusiness network into key
developing markets including Vietham and Camboldidiscal 2014 , we plan to continue to expand @lobal Sourcing teams, develop
stronger processes to help us integrate our saueativities with our category management effaats] continue to expand our supplier
network.

Inventory shrinkage continued to be a challengaufoin fiscal 2013 as we faced higher store manageover and elevated inventory
levels. In fiscal 2014, we expect to stabilize storanager turnover through our store simplificagéfort and better inventory management. In
addition, we expect to reduce inventory shrinkag@broducing new technology in our stores. In §is2013, we implemented a new security
DVR camera system that is more user-friendly thanpoevious platform and we plan to introduce a sesurity tagging program and add
additional security cameras to the sales floorew stores.

During fiscal 2014 , we expect net sales to groimarily due to the acceleration of our new stor@ngh and a modest increase in
comparable stores sales.
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Results of Operations
Our results of operations for fiscal 2013 , fis2@ll2 and fiscal 2011 are highlighted in the tal@lpWw and discussed in the following

paragraphs:

Years Ended
August 31, % of Net August 25, % of Net August 27, % of Net

(in thousands) 2013* Sales** 2012 Sales** 2011 Sales**
Net sales $ 10,391,45 $ 9,331,00 $ 8,547,83!
Cost and expenses:

Cost of sales*** 6,836,71. 65.€% 6,071,05! 65.1% 5,515,541 64.5%

Selling, general and administrative 2,866,78! 27.€% 2,584,23. 27.1% 2,409,52 28.2%

Litigation charge — 0.C% 11,50( 0.1% — 0.C%
Cost of sales and operating expenses 9,703,501 93.2% 8,666,79: 92.% 7,925,06: 92.71%
Operating profit 687,95 6.€% 664,21: 7.1% 622,77: 7.2%
Investment income 422 0.C% 927 0.C% 1,532 0.C%
Interest expense 25,88¢ 0.2% 25,09( 0.2% 22,44¢ 0.2%
Other Income 28,20¢ 0.2% 23,88¢ 0.2% 15,29¢ 0.2%
Income before income taxes 690,69° 6.7% 663,93 7.1% 617,15¢ 7.2%
Income taxes 247,12: 2.4% 241,69t 2.6% 228,71: 2. 7%
Net Income $ 443,57 43% $ 422,24 45 $  388,44! 4.5%

*Fiscal 2013 contains 53 weeks, as compared to &k in fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011.
**Percentages are rounded.
***Included in Cost of Sales for fiscal 2013 wagre-time $5.0 million favorable accounting adjusttrelated to certain vendor allowances.

Comparison of Fiscal 2013 to Fiscal 2012

Net Sale:

Net sales increased 11.4% in fiscal 2013 compardéddal 2012 . Consistent with the National Refatleration Calendar, fiscal 2013
included 53 weeks as compared to 52 weeks in f@B2 . The additional week in fiscal 2013 accodrite approximately $189 million in net
sales, or approximately 2.0% of the net sales asgeAdditionally, the net sales increase in fi2€dl3 reflects an increase in comparable stor
sales of 3.0%, with the balance of the increasepdiearily to sales from new stores opened asqfastir store growth program.

Comparable store sales growth for all presenteidgedescribes the change in net sales in anygésicstores considered compar
to the prior period. Comparable store sales incutkt sales at stores open more than 13 monthsrélsecomes comparable the first calends
week it has sales after 13 months of being openoReed, relocated or expanded stores are inclindibe comparable store sales calculation
to the extent they had sales during comparable svieeach year. The method of calculating comparstare sales varies across the retail
industry. As a result, our comparable store sadé=utation may not be comparable to similarly ttleeasures reported by other companies.

The 3.0% increase in comparable store sales ialf&x13 resulted from increases in both custonaéfi¢r as measured by the number
of register transactions, and the dollar valuehefdverage customer transaction, which increasaggmximately $10.50 per transaction.
During fiscal 2013 , the customer count increaggat@imately 1.7%, and the average customer traiosainicreased approximately 1.3%
compared to fiscal 2012 . Sales during fiscal 20&8 strongest in the Consumables category.

During fiscal 2013 we opened 500 stores and closed 26 stores fetr addlition of 474 stores, compared with the opgind75 store
and closing of 56 stores for a net addition of dtt¥es during fiscal 2012 .

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased 12.6% in fiscal 2013 coetptr fiscal 2012 . The increase was primarily luadditional sales volume.
Included in Cost of sales for fiscal 2013 was a-time $5.0 million favorable accounting adjustmeziated to
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certain vendor allowances. Cost of sales, as a&ptage of net sales, was 65.8% in fiscal 2013 comdp® 65.1% in fiscal 2012 . Cost of sales
as a percentage of net sales, was negatively ieggt the significant shift in sales mix to loweaimin consumable merchandise, an increast
in inventory shrinkage, and an increase in markdowihese pressures were partially offset by highecthase markups on merchandise sales
and lower freight expense.

The growth in sales of lowanargin consumables (72.4% of net sales in fiscaB2bmpared with 69.0% of net sales in fiscal 2Gk
well as the softness in sales of discretionary steontinues to pressure cost of sales as a pegeeataet sales. While our inventory levels
were lower on a per store basis at the end of|[f&2H3, as compared to fiscal 2012, the averagenitory balance in our stores was higher
throughout fiscal 2013, as compared to fiscal 20iZentory shrinkage increased during fiscal 2@s3¢compared to fiscal 2012, due in part to
increased average inventory levels throughout fi2843. We continue to use markdowns in our sttyelive revenue growth and increase
market share in a challenging environment. In @aiditwve have increased our markdowns as we contmugfine our assortment of
consumable merchandise. We continue to focus orowing our purchase markups through improved pmiemagement, expansion of our
Global Sourcing efforts, and the continued develephof our private brand assortment. The decreafeight expense was a result of char
in our supply chain as it relates to our newly fedhelationship with McLane, which results in lessrchandise processed through our own
distribution network.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A expenses increased 10.9% in fiscal 2013 coetptar fiscal 2012 . The increase in these expemasgiue in part to additional
sales volume and additional costs arising fromctirginued growth in the number of stores in operatSG&A expenses, as a percentage ¢
sales, were 27.6% in fiscal 2013 compared to 27r/fiscal 2012 SG&A expenses, as a percentage of net sales,|leenaged as a result o
decrease in non-store payroll costs, includingrtige compensation expense (approximately 0.2%ebales), partially offset by increased
store occupancy costs (approximately 0.2% of nes¥an fiscal 2013 , as compared to fiscal 2012 .

Reflecting our pay-for-performance philosophy, midée compensation costs decreased as a percasftagesales as a result of our
relative performance against our target in fis€dl2, as compared to fiscal 2012. Store occupanstg ¢acreased as a percentage of net sa
fiscal 2013, as compared to fiscal 2012, primadifiyen by the additional rental expense on the §i88es sold pursuant to sale-leaseback
transactions in the second half of fiscal 2012 iarféscal 2013.

Litigation Charge

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, we reaatcn $11.5 million litigation charge associatethwhe settlement of a lawsuit in 1
state of New York. This lawsuit involves claims forertime pay from New York store managers who wdri our stores.

Investment Incom
The change in investment income in fiscal 2013camspared to fiscal 2012 , was not material.
Interest Expens
The change in interest expense in fiscal 2013paswpared to fiscal 2012 , was not material.
Other Income
The change in other income in fiscal 2013 , as @ebto fiscal 2012 , was not material.
Income Taxe
The effective tax rate was 35.8% for fiscal 2018 pared to 36.4% in fiscal 2012 he decrease in the effective tax rate in fi€dI3,

as compared to fiscal 2012, was due primarily deerease in the reserve for state taxes and agagein the benefit of federal tax credits
partially offset by an increase in the reserveaifurertain tax positions.
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Comparison of Fiscal 2012 to Fiscal 2011
Net Sale:

Net sales increased 9.2% in fiscal 2012 compardéddal 2011. The net sales increase in fiscal 2@fl2cts an increase in compara
store sales of 4.7%, with the balance of the irsgehue primarily to sales from new stores opengahef our store growth program. The
4.7% increase in comparable store sales in figgb2 2esulted from increases in both customer trads measured by the number of register
transactions, and the dollar value of the averagé&mer transaction. During fiscal 2012, the custooount increased approximately 2.7%,
the average customer transaction increased appatedyr2.0% compared to fiscal 2011. Sales duriscgli2012 were strongest in the
Consumables category.

During fiscal 2012, we opened 475 stores and clé$estores for a net addition of 419 stores, corpavith the opening of 300 stores
and closing of 62 stores for a net addition of 888es during fiscal 2011.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased 10.1% in fiscal 2012 coetptr fiscal 2011. The increase was due primavilgdditional sales volume. Cost
of sales, as a percentage of net sales, was 65.1i%cal 2012 compared to 64.5% in fiscal 2011.t@bdsales, as a percentage of net sales, we
negatively impacted by the shift in sales mix towéo-margin consumable merchandise, an increase@ntory shrinkage, and higher
markdowns. These pressures were partially offsetrbiyncrease in the markups on the sales of medit@nThe growth in sales of lower-
margin consumables (69.0% of net sales in fiscaR2fbmpared
with 66.5% of net sales in fiscal 2011) continuegtessure gross profit as a percentage of net.dalentory shrinkage increased during fisca
2012 as a result of increased activities in ourestancluding renovations and significant merchsméxpansions. We continue to use
markdowns in our stores to drive revenue growtlindguchallenging macro-economic times as well aad¢oease market share. We continue to
focus on improving our purchase markups througtctminued development of our private brand assamtyithe expansion of our Global
Sourcing efforts, and improved price managemenaloitifies.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A expenses increased 7.3% in fiscal 2012 congp@aréiscal 2011. The increase in these expensesiwa in part to additional
sales volume and additional costs arising fromctirginued growth in the number of stores in operatSG&A expenses, as a percentage ¢
sales, were 27.7% in fiscal 2012 compared to 28rfiscal 2011. Most expenses in fiscal 2012 weketaged as a result of a 4.7% increa:
comparable store sales and continued productiviprovements. In addition, SG&A expenses, as a ptage of net sales, were leveraged as
result of a decrease in store payroll costs (apprately 0.3% of net sales) and a decrease in inseraxpense (approximately 0.2% of net
sales). These improvements were partially offsahbyeased marketing expense (approximately 0.1#@bs$ales) in fiscal 2012, as compared
to fiscal 2011. The decrease in store payroll costs a result of the continued benefit from improeats implemented to re-engineer many of
our core store processes, which has increased erogkproductivity. Insurance expense continuestweht from favorable trends in workers'
compensation and general liability costs reflectimgrovements we have made in our store operatiodsisk management processes. Our
marketing expense increased as a percentage sélestas we expanded our customer communicateresaged various marketing vehicles
and improved our marketing and promotional matsrial

Litigation Charge

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, we reaatcn $11.5 million litigation charge associatethwhe preliminary settlement of a
lawsuit in the state of New York. This lawsuit inves claims for overtime pay from New York storermagers who worked in our stores.

Investment Incom

The change in investment income in fiscal 201Z;aspared to fiscal 2011, was not material.
Interest Expens

Interest expense increased $2.6 million in fis€dl2compared to fiscal 2011. On January 28, 20&lissued $300 million in senior
unsecured notes with a coupon rate of 5.00% mafumi2021 (the “2021 Notes”). The increase in iagtiexpense in fiscal 2012, as compared
to fiscal 2011, was primarily driven by the intéregpense on the 2021 Notes.

Other Income
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The change in other income in fiscal 2012, as coatpwo fiscal 2011, was not material.
Income Taxe

The effective tax rate was 36.4% for fiscal 201&pared to 37.1% in fiscal 2011. The decrease iretlestive tax rate in fiscal 2012,
as compared to fiscal 2011, was due primarily teifm tax benefits realized in connection with @@mpany's Global Sourcing efforts and a
decrease in the reserves for uncertain tax position

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

We have consistently maintained a strong liquigitgition. During fiscal 2013, our cash and cashwedents increased $48.7 million,
as compared to fiscal 2012, and our operating flagls were $472.0 million. We believe our operatoash flows, proceeds from sale-
leaseback transactions, and credit facilities afficéent to fund our regular operating needs, ta@xpenditure program, share repurchases,
cash dividend payments, and principal and intgraginents. We have availability under our two créatitlities to borrow up to $700 million
(less standby letters of credit needed for colitier our insurance programs of $18.8 millionkstgpplement operating cash flows. During
fiscal 2013, to help supplement our operating destis and to support our growth initiatives, indliogl our significant merchandise expansions
and our Fee Development Program, we had borrowingsr our unsecured revolving credit facilities &iad an average daily outstanding
balance of $141.5 million during fiscal 2013. Wanicapital at the end of fiscal 2013 was $776.8ianilcompared to $702.5 million at the ¢
of fiscal 2012. We believe operating cash flows eagacity under existing credit facilities will dorue to provide sufficient liquidity for our
ongoing operations and growth initiatives.

Restricted Cash and Investme

We have restricted cash and investments to sergellaseral for certain of our insurance obligasdhat are held at our wholly owned
captive insurance subsidiary. These restrictedduracinot be withdrawn from our account withoutdbesent of the secured party. As of
August 31, 2013, we held $55.5 million in thistriesed account, of which $35.4 million was incladde Restricted Cash and Investments and
$20.1 million was included in Other Assets in tren€olidated Balance Sheets. As of August 25, 2@i& held $55.3 million in this restricted
account, of which $45.9 million was included in Resed Cash and Investments and $9.4 million wakided in Other Assets in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The classificatiowdst current and non-current is based on the timirexpected payments of the secured
insurance obligations. Previously, these obligatiaere collateralized using standby letters ofitr@atler our revolving credit facilities. We
made this change to achieve savings in the castltafteralizing our insurance obligations.

Additionally, in conjunction with the sale-leasekdm@nsactions completed in fiscal 2013 and fi&€dl2, certain proceeds from the
transactions were placed into an escrow accouhtavitindependent third-party in connection witleldind exchange transactions, which
permits the deferral of a portion of the tax gasariated with the sale of the stores. The Comp#apded to use these proceeds to purchase
additional new stores and was required to do sbinvit80 days from the closing of the transactiansetlize the deferral. During the 180 -day
deferral period, these assets were classified agi&ed Cash and Investments in the Consolidatddrige Sheets. We had no restricted cash
and investments balance related to these transac®of the end of fiscal 2013 and $ 80.4 milésrof the end of fiscal 2012 .

Fee Development Program and S-Leaseback Transactions

We occupy most of our stores under operating le@separt of our new store growth strategy, we hareated a Fee Development
Program (“Fee Development Program”), intended twiole us with a more cost effective means to firathe construction of new and
relocated store locations.

Under the Company's previous model for opening pe@ehstructed stores, once a viable store sitelocated, a developer would
acquire the land and construct a store. Store rarigin was funded by the developer through cortitra loans. Upon completion of the
construction, the store would be leased to the @GmypThe total construction cost of the store, @ltichate lease cost to the Company, would
be impacted by the developer's construction arahfimg costs. Under the Fee Development Prograog awiable store site is located, the
Company acquires the land, funds the constructitimite own capital, and pays the developer a éeét§ work on the project. This program
results in a lower total construction cost of tteres because the Company's weighted average bagaaie, based on its investment grade
credit rating, is lower than
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interest rates on construction loans its developeusd obtain. Under this program, the Company otlhiesstore throughout the construction
phase and upon completion of construction.

As the Company's current real estate strategynstown store locations, the Company has usedira@dds to continue to use, sale-
leaseback transactions to sell stores it ownsrasudt of the Fee Development Program and concilyrimase them back. By completing sale-
leaseback transactions, the Company monetizesathe of the stores it sells. The Company then oigdo re-invest the proceeds into the Fee
Development Program to construct more stores. [Quigtal 2013, we invested in projects at a co$2%2.5 million under this program.

During fiscal 2013, the Company completed saledbask transactions under which it sold a total5 &tores and 29 parcels of land
to unrelated third-parties for net proceeds of apnately $335.0 million and $10.2 million, respeety. Upon closing of the transactions, the
Company realized a gain on the sale of the stdr$847 million, of which approximately $2.4 milliowvas recognized immediately and
approximately $82.3 million was deferred and wél&mortized over the initial lease term.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed saledbask transactions under which it sold a total# &tores to unrelated third-
parties for net proceeds of $359.7 million. Upowosalg of the transactions, the Company deferreaimaf approximately $171.6 million
realized on the sale of the stores and will amerttie gain over the initial lease term.

Concurrent with these sales, we entered into ageatto lease the properties back from the purchaser an initial lease term of 15
years upon completion of construction. The mas@sés for each transaction include an initial tefidb years and four, fi-year renewal
options and provides for the Company to evaluath store individually upon certain events during life of the lease, including individual
renewal options. The Company classifies these $e@as®perating leases, actively uses the leaspénies and considers the leases as norma
leasebacks under ASC 840.

Credit Facilities

On November 17, 2010, the Company entered intonefoer-year unsecured revolving credit facility v syndicate of lenders for
borrowings of up to $400 million. The credit fatilimatures on November 17, 2014, and providesior bne-year extensions that require
lender consent. Any borrowings under the credififp@ccrue interest at a variable rate basedtmrtsterm market interest rates. The credit
facility replaced the previous 364-day $250 milliamsecured revolving credit facility.

On August 17, 2011, the Company entered into afiv@ayear unsecured revolving credit facility wahsyndicate of lenders for
borrowings of up to $300 million. The credit fatilmatures on August 17, 2016, and provides for, tme-year extensions that require lender
consent. Any borrowings under the credit facilicgaue interest at a variable rate based on shaort#earket interest rates. The credit facility
replaced the Company’s previous five-year $200iomllinsecured credit facility.

As of August 31, 2013, the Company had no outstapdorrowings under the credit facilities. As ofgust 25, 2012, the Company
had $15.0 million in outstanding borrowings under ¢redit facilities. During fiscal 2013, the Compdad an average daily outstanding
balance of $141.5 million at an annualized weigfdedrage interest rate of 1.5% under its unseawealving credit facilities. The credit
facilities contain certain restrictive financiah@mants, which include a consolidated debt to dafeted total capitalization ratio, a fixed
charge coverage ratio, and a priority debt to clest®d net worth ratio. As of August 31, 2013, @@mpany was in compliance with all such
covenants.

Long-Term Debt

On January 28, 2011, the Company issued $300 mitifid.00% unsecured senior notes due Februar21, ghe “2021 Notes”),
through a public offering. The Company’s proceedsenapproximately $298.5 million, net of an isswadiscount of $1.5 million. In addition,
the Company incurred issuance costs of approxim&®B million. Both the discount and issuance £asé being amortized to interest exps
over the term of the 2021 Notes. Interest on tHEl20otes is payable semiannually in arrears ori¢helay of February and August of each
year, commencing on August 1, 2011. The 2021 Naielspari passun right of payment with the Company’s other unsedusenior
indebtedness and will be senior in right of paymerany subordinated indebtedness. The Companyretiaem the 2021 Notes in whole at
time or in part from time to time, at the optiontbé Company, subject to a make-whole premiumdtitan, upon the occurrence of certain
change of control triggering events, the Company bearequired to repurchase the 2021 Notes, ata pgual to 101% of their principal
amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to thee afatepurchase.
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On September 27, 2005, the Company obtained $2Bi0mthrough a private placement of unsecuredaemotes due September 27,
2015 (the “2015 Notes”), to a group of institutibaacredited investors. The 2015 Notes were isguéao tranches at par and rapéri passu
in right of payment with the Company’s other unsedusenior indebtedness. The first tranche haggregate principal amount of $169
million, is payable in a single installment on Sapber 27, 2015, and bears interest at a rate @¥bper annum from the date of issuance. The
second tranche has an aggregate principal amo@&lof
million, matures on September 27, 2015, with araatidbn that began on September 27, 2011, and bearsst at a rate of 5.24% per annum
from the date of issuance. The second tranche heguéred principal payment of $16.2 million on 8epber 27, 2011, and on each Septembe
27 thereafter to and including September 27, 201tBrest on the 2015 Notes is payable semi-annirabyrears on the 27th day of March and
September of each year. The 2015 Notes contaiaigedstrictive financial covenants, which inclumeonsolidated debt to consolidated total
capitalization ratio, a fixed charge coverage raind a priority debt to consolidated net wortlorads of August 31, 2013 , the Company was
in compliance with all such covenants.

Principal Paymen

During the first quarter of fiscal 2013, we madgcheduled principal payment on our private placémetes in the amount of $16.2
million. The next principal payment of $16.2 milievas paid in September 2013.

Other Considerations

Our merchandise inventories at the end of fiscaB2Pere 2.9% greater than at the end of fiscal 20d2entory per store at the end
fiscal 2013 was 3.3% lower than inventory per stirthe end of fiscal 201,2vhich was a result of our efforts to manage inegnlevels in ou
stores.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2013 were $744.4ioni, compared with $603.3 million in fiscal 2012nd $345.3 million in fiscal
2011 . The growth in capital expenditures durisgdi 2013, as compared to fiscal 2012, was prisneglhted to increased investments in new
stores, including investments in fee developmeorest In fiscal 2013 we spent $385.2 million redaie new stores; $149.1 million on our st
renovation program; $76.0 million to support oupgly chain, including the completion of our eleventstribution center; $81.1 million
related to corporate and technology investmenits;$&3.0 million on existing stores. The increasedpital expenditures during fiscal 2012, as
compared to fiscal 2011, was due primarily to iasetl new store openings (including stores openéerwur Fee Development Program), the
completion of the construction of our tenth diatitibn center, investments in fixtures to supportexpanded assortment of consumables, anc
investments related to renovations, relocationseapansions. In fiscal 2012, we spent $203.0 mnilba new stores; $160.9 million on our
store renovation program; $99.9 million on existatgres; $89.4 million to support our supply chaieluding the completion of construction
of our tenth distribution center and the startafistruction of our eleventh distribution centergd &50.1 million related to corporate and
technology investments.

During fiscal 2013 , we purchased 1.2 million skasEour common stock at a cost of $75.0 milliawmpared to 3.2 million shares at
a cost of $191.6 million in fiscal 2012 , and 1BBlion shares at a cost of $670.5 million in fise811 . On January 17, 2013, the Company
announced that the Board of Directors authorizeddbmpany to purchase up to an additional $300amibf the Company’s outstanding
common stock. On September 28, 2011, the Compamyuziced that the Board of Directors authorizeddbepany to purchase up to $250
million of the Company’s outstanding common sto&g&.of August 31, 2013, the Company had $370.8aniltemaining under current share
repurchase authorizations.

The timing and amount of any shares repurchasee begn and will continue to be determined by mamagé based on its evaluati
of market conditions and other factors. Our shapairchase programs do not have a stated expirddi@n and purchases may be made throug
open market purchases, private market transaabioather structured transactions.

In addition to the Restricted Cash and Investmeated above, our wholly-owned captive insurancesiglidry maintains additional
balances in cash and cash equivalents and invessmeurities that are used in connection with etaiined workers’ compensation, general
liability and automobile liability risks and aretraesignated for general corporate purposes. Alseoénd of fiscal 2013 , these cash and cash
equivalents and investment securities balancekifimg Restricted Cash and Investments) were $3libmand $82.0 million, respectively.

Additionally, in fiscal 2013, we continued to explaour Global Sourcing team, develop stronger pree$f0 help us integrate our
sourcing activities with our category managemefuresf and expand our supplier network. As a resithis global expansion and the incres
activities being performed by our Global Sourciegrh members, we had $23.0 million of cash and egslvalents in these foreign entities as
of August 31, 2013. We are not dependent on didddrom our foreign
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entities to fund our domestic operations. Unrerdigarnings from foreign entities, which are considdo be invested indefinitely, would
become subject to U.S. income taxes if they weardtted as dividends or were lent to a domesticnti

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities increased#.enillion during fiscal 2013 to $472.0 millions aompared to fiscal 2012 . The
increase was due primarily to a reduction in payér merchandise inventories in fiscal 2013, @wared to fiscal 2012, which was offset
partially by changes in prepayments and other otiassets and income taxes, all in the ordinaryssoaf business.

Cash provided by operating activities decrease® F1illion during fiscal 2012, as compared todils2011. The decrease was due
primarily to an increase in merchandise inventoinefiscal 2012 as noted above, and a decreasecouats payable and accrued liabilities,
which was offset partially by changes in prepaymemd other current assets and higher net incdime the ordinary course of business.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities increased $1@86lBn during fiscal 2013 to $314.6 million, asrapared to fiscal 2012The chang
was due primarily to an increase in capital expemes, offset partially by net changes in restdatash and investments and investment
securities. The increase in capital expendituremddiscal 2013 is discussed above.

Cash used in investing activities decreased $88libmduring fiscal 2012, as compared to fiscall20The change was due to the net
proceeds received from the sale-leaseback transaati$359.7 million, offset partially by an incezain capital expenditures. The increase in
capital expenditures during fiscal 2012 is discdssgove.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities decreased $1mlllbn during fiscal 2013 to $108.7 million, asrapared to fiscal 2012 . We
purchased $75.0 million of our common stock dufiegal 2013 as compared to $191.6 million in fis2@l2 , a decrease in share repurchase:
of $116.6 million.

Cash used in financing activities decreased $268I®n during fiscal 2012, as compared to fisc@ll2. We purchased $191.6 milli
of our common stock during fiscal 2012 as comp#oe®670.5 million in fiscal 2011, a decrease inrsha@purchases of $478.9 million. In
addition, during fiscal 2011, we issued $300 millif 5.00% unsecured senior notes, creating afgignt cash inflow from financing activitie
in fiscal 2011, which offset the decrease in shapairchases.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Conmatts

The following table shows our obligations and conmmeints to make future payments under contractuaaitons at the end of fiscal
2013.

Payments Due During

(in thousands)

Contractual Obligations Total Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2016 Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2018 Thereafter

Long-term debt $ 517,60( $ 16,20C $ 16,20C $ 185,200 $ — % — $ 300,00(
Interest 139,17 26,26¢ 25,41¢ 19,99¢ 15,00( 15,00( 37,50(
Merchandise letters of credit 75,58¢ 75,58¢ — — — — —
Operating leases 3,561,13 515,25 474,60: 426,78t 381,19¢ 328,52 1,434,771
Construction obligations 38,13¢ 38,13t — — — — —
Minimum royalties? 3,50( 2,80( 70C — — — —
Total $ 433513 $ 674,247 $ 51691 $ 631,98 $ 396,19t $ 343,52° $ 1,772,227

(1) Minimum royalty payments related to an exclusiveeagnent to sell certain branded merchandise.

As of August 31, 2013 , we had $30.2 million irbiieties related to our uncertain tax positions.tiis time, we cannot reasonably
determine the timing of any payments related tgeHmbilities, except for $4.8 million, which were
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classified as current liabilities and may becomgapée within the next 12 months. See Note 10 tddbasolidated Financial Statements
included in this Report for more information on dax liabilities.

The following table shows our other commercial catmments at the end of fiscal 2013 .

Total Amounts

Other Commercial Commitments (in thousands) Committed

Standby letters of credit $ 48,76’

Surety bonds 37,03¢
Total $ 85,801

A substantial portion of the outstanding amounstahdby letters of credit (which are primarily reeel on an annual basis) is used as
surety for future premium and deductible paymentsur workers’ compensation and general liabilityurance carrier. We accrue for these
future payment liabilities as described in the ti€al Accounting Policies” section of this discuzsi

We issue inventory purchase orders in the normalsenof business, which represent purchase austions that can be canceled. We
do not consider purchase orders to be firm invgntommitments; therefore, they are excluded froentétble above. If we choose to cancel a
purchase order, we may be obligated to reimbuseehdor for unrecoverable outlays incurred praocancellation.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any material off balaheet arrangements other than the operating leadeded in the “Contractual
Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments” sectbove.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standddard ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Up@&tE3-02 "Reporting of
Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Caghpnsive Income" ("ASU 2013-02"). ASU 2013-02 regsiian entity to provide
information about the amounts reclassified outagiuanulated other comprehensive income by compoiéet ASU is effective for annual
periods and interim periods within those periodgiteing after December 15, 2012. The ASU will bieetive for us beginning in the first
quarter of fiscal 2014 and is not expected to lew@aterial impact on our Consolidated Financiatedtents.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements have been prepared irrdanoe with accounting policies generally accefdtie United States of Americ
Our discussion and analysis of our financial caodiand results of operations are based on theaadial statements. The preparation of thes
financial statements requires the application ebaating policies in addition to certain estimates judgments by our management. Our
estimates and judgments are based on currentliablainformation, historical results and othenemsptions we believe are reasonable. Actua
results could differ from these estimates.

We believe the following accounting principles ariical because they involve significant judgmemissumptions and estimates usec
in the preparation of our Consolidated Financiat&nents.

Merchandise Inventorie:

Our inventories are valued using the retail mettaged on retail prices less mark-on percentag@shvapproximates the lower of
first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or market. We record adjustmenisentory through cost of sales when retail prieductions, or markdowns,
taken against on-hand inventory. In addition, w&enastimates and judgments regarding, among diivegs, initial markups, markdowns,
future demand for specific product categories aadket conditions, all of which can significantly piaect inventory valuation. These estimates
and judgments are based on the application of sistemt methodology each period. While we beliénag tve have sufficient current and
historical knowledge to record reasonable estimatethese components, if actual demand or maneditions are different than our
projections, it is possible that actual resultsldaliffer from recorded estimates. This risk is geally higher for seasonal merchandise than for
non-seasonal merchandise. We estimate inventosgdd®r damaged, lost or stolen inventory (invgnshrinkage) for the period from the
most recent physical inventory to the financiatestaent date. The accrual for estimated inventorinkage
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was $77.5 million as of the end of fiscal 2013 &68.8 million as of the end of fiscal 2012 . Theraal for estimated inventory shrinkage is
based on the trailing twelve-month actual inventninkage rate and can fluctuate from period t@oplebased on the timing of the physical
inventory counts. Stores receive a physical inugna least annually. There were no material chamg¢he estimates or assumptions relate
the valuation of inventory during fiscal 2013 .

Property and Equipmen

We state property and equipment at cost. We cakdkpreciation for financial reporting purposeimgshe straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the related assetsldasehold improvements, this depreciation is tive shorter of the term of the related lease
(generally between five and fifteen years), inahgdieasonably assured renewal options, or the’assetful economic life. The valuation and
classification of these assets and the assignniersedul depreciable lives involves significant gmaents and the use of estimates. The increa
in gross property and equipment, before depreciattonot commensurate with capital expenditurestdithe significant amount of assets solc
during the year under sale-leaseback transactiiegyenerally do not assign salvage value to prgart equipment. We review property and
equipment for impairment whenever events or chairgescumstances indicate that the carrying amadiain asset may not be
recoverable. Historically, our impairment lossedigad assets, which typically relate to normakstolosings, have not been material to our
financial position and results of operations. Theete no material changes in the estimates or gssums related to the valuation and
classification of property and equipment duringdis2013 . See Notes 1 and 5 to the ConsolidateshEial Statements included in this Report
for more information on property and equipment.

Insurance Liabilities:

We are primarily self-insured for health care, nayp loss, workers’ compensation, general liahilégd auto liability costs. These
costs are significant primarily due to the largentver of our retail locations and employees. Ourisslirance liabilities are based on the total
estimated costs of claims filed and estimatesaifred incurred but not reported, less amounts pgaéhat such claims, and are not
discounted. We review current and historical claffata in developing our estimates. We also userrdton provided by outside actuaries
with respect to medical, workers’ compensation egahliability, and auto liability claims. The insnce liabilities we record are mainly
influenced by changes in payroll expense, salesben of vehicles, and the frequency and severigtaims. The estimates of more recent
claims are more volatile and more likely to chatiggn older claims. If the underlying facts and einstances of the claims change or if the
historical trend is not indicative of future trenttsen we may be required to record additional espeor a reduction in expense, which could b
material to our reported financial condition angulés of operations.

We record our liabilities for workers’ compensatigeneral liability and auto liability costs on @gs basis, and record a separate
insurance asset for amounts recoverable underdasspnsurance policies on the Consolidated Bal&tma®ets. In addition, our gross liabilities
and the related insurance asset are separateclimant and non-current amounts on the ConsolidBédance Sheets.

Our total liabilities for workers’ compensation,mgeal liability and auto liability costs were $2B2nillion ($52.2 million current and
$179.9 million non-current) as of the end of fis2@lL3 and $236.7 million ($52.0 million current &tB4.6 million non-current) as of the end
of fiscal 2012 . The current portion of the liatids is included in Accrued Liabilities on the Colidated Balance Sheets, and the non-current
portion is included in Other Liabilities. The inamce assets related to these amounts totaled $@lioh ($2.5 million current and $29.2
million non-current) as of the end of fiscal 201®1&34.8 million ($2.9 million current and $31.9llioh non-current) as of the end of fiscal
2012 . The current portion of the assets is indudeprepayments and Other Current Assets on tms@idlated Balance Sheets, and the non-
current portion is included in Other Assets. Theege no other material estimates for insurancalilieds during fiscal 2013 or fiscal 2012ur
insurance expense during fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2@ fiscal 2011 was impacted by changes in ouilitias for workers’ compensation, general
liability and auto liability costs.

Contingent Income Tax Liabilities:

We are subject to routine income tax audits thatioperiodically in the normal course of business] we record contingent income
tax liabilities related to our uncertain tax pamits. Our liabilities related to uncertain tax piosis require an assessment of the probability &
income-tax-related exposures and settlements anihdwenced by our historical audit experiencethwarious taxing authorities as well as by
current income tax trends. If circumstances chawgemay be required to record adjustments thatdcbaelmaterial to our reported financial
condition and results of operations. Our liabiitielated to uncertain tax positions were $30.8anilas of the end of fiscal 2013 and $22.4
million as of the end of fiscal 2012 . There wecemmaterial changes in the estimates or assumptised to determine contingent income tax
liabilities during
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fiscal 2013 . See Note 10 to the Consolidated HiigduStatements included in this Report for moferimation on our contingent income tax
liabilities.

Contingent Legal Liabilities:

We are involved in numerous legal proceedings daidchs. Our accruals, if any, related to these pedoggs and claims are based on &
determination of whether or not the loss is bottbpble and estimable. We review outstanding clantsproceedings with external counsel to
assess probability and estimates of loss. We rkerateathe claims and proceedings each quarter mewsand significant information becomes
available, and we adjust or establish accrualsedessary. If circumstances change, we may beresbia record adjustments that could be
material to our reported financial condition ansulés of operations. Our total legal liabilitiesreenot material as of the end of fiscal 2013 or
fiscal 2012. There were no material changes in the estimatassumptions used to determine contingent leghiliies during fiscal 2012. S
Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statememisided in this Report for more information on oantingent legal liabilities

Stock-based Compensation Expense:

We measure stock-based compensation expense hatieel @stimated fair value of the award on the tgate. The determination of
the fair value of our employee stock options ongtant date is calculated using a Black-Schole®oyricing model and is affected by our
stock price as well as by assumptions regardingnaber of complex and subjective variables. Thesabkes include, but are not limited to,
the expected stock price volatility over the terinth@ awards, and actual and projected employex stption exercise behaviors. We also g
performance share rights and adjust compensatipense each quarter based on the ultimate numistiaoés expected to be issued. If factors
change and we employ different assumptions to nmeasack-based compensation in future periodsgohgpensation expense recorded may
differ significantly from the amount recorded iretburrent period. Our results for fiscal 2013 ¢dis2012 and fiscal 2011 include stock-based
compensation expense of $16.3 million, $15.9 milémd $14.7 million, respectively. There were ndaral changes in the estimates or
assumptions used to determine stock-based compmndating fiscal 2013 . See Note 13 to the Consdéid Financial Statements included in
this Report for more information on stock-based pensation.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to market risk from exposure to gbarin interest rates based on our financing, tmgand cash management
activities. We maintain unsecured revolving créaliilities at variable rates of interest to meet short-term needs of our expansion program
and seasonal inventory increases. We performedsitisity analysis assuming a hypothetical 100 ®asiint movement in interest rates apg
to the average daily borrowings under our creditlifg. As of August 31, 2013, the analysis inde@that such a movement would not have a
material impact on our financial position, reswfperations or cash flows. During fiscal 2013 &indal 2012 we incurred an immaterial
amount of interest expense related to our credilitias.

We are also subject to market risk from exposumhtmges in the fair value of our investment séiestiOur investment securities
currently include auction rate securities thatsargject to failed auctions and are not currentjyitl. As of August 31, 2013 , we had a $2.7
million unrealized loss ( $1.7 millionet of taxes) related to these investments. Wewelive will be able to liquidate our auction ragewgities
at par at some point in the future as a resulssdér calls or refinancings, repurchases by thieebmbealers, or upon maturity. However,
volatility in the credit markets could continuertegatively impact the timing of future liquiditylaged to these investments and lead to
additional adjustments to their carrying value. péeformed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypmélel 00 basis point movement in the
illiquidity factor along with a 12-month increasedecrease in the weighted average term. As of sugl, 2013, the analysis indicated such
movement could result in a gross unrealized losging from $1.6 million to $4.7 millionSee Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statés
included in this Report for more information.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of RaDdllar Stores, Inc., and Subsidiaries:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated folalnstatements listed in the accompanying indesgnt fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Family Dollar Stores, Incnaiits subsidiaries at August 31, 2013 and AugbstR12, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three yeathémperiod ended August 31, 2013 in conformityhveitcounting principles generally acceptec
in the United States of America. Also in our opimithe Company maintained, in all material respeftective internal control over financial
reporting as of August 31, 2013, based on critestablished in Internal Controlntegrated Framework issued by the Committee oihSprinc
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg Tbmpany's management is responsible for thesedial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportingd for its assessment of the effectiveness efriat control over financial reporting, included
in Management's Report on Internal Control oveaRaial Reporting appearing in Iltem 9A elsewherthis Report. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statement®aride Company's internal control over financiglorting based on our integrated audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with the statsdafrthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bagidited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toinbtasonable assurance about whether the finastei@ments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cortvelr financial reporting was maintained in all exal respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideace supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, and evaluating the ovemaldial statement presentation. Our a

of internal control over financial reporting inckatl obtaining an understanding of internal conts@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaduthie design and operating effectiveness of ivalecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstaMeebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repagtis a process designed to provide reasonableasgsuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fapeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettfansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readwaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charlotte, North Carolina
October 28, 2013
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FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share amounts) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012 August 27, 2011
Net sales $ 10,391,45 $ 9,331,000 $ 8,547,83!
Cost and expenses:
Cost of sales 6,836,71. 6,071,05! 5,515,54
Selling, general and administrative 2,866,78 2,584,23. 2,409,52.
Litigation charge — 11,50( —
Cost of sales and operating expenses 9,703,501 8,666,79: 7,925,06:
Operating profit 687,95 664,21: 622,77.
Investment income 422 927 1,532
Interest expense 25,88¢ 25,09( 22,44¢
Other income 28,20¢ 23,88¢ 15,29¢
Income before income taxes 690,69’ 663,93 617,15¢
Income taxes 247,12. 241,69¢ 228,71:
Net income $ 443,57 % 422241 $ 388,44!
Net income per common share—basic $ 3.8 % 361 $ 3.1F
Weighted average shares—basic 115,25: 117,09° 123,36(
Net income per common share—diluted $ 3.8z ¢ 35¢ $ 3.1Z
Weighted average shares—diluted 115,80! 118,05¢ 124,48t

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.
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FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended

(in thousands) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012 August 27, 2011
Net income $ 44357 % 422,240 $ 388,44!

Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains/(losses) on investment secultiesof taxes of
$0.4 million in fiscal 2013, $2.7 million in fisc&012 and $0.6

million in fiscal 2011) (413 4,52 904
Other 5¢ 35 (261)
Comprehensive income $ 44322: % 426,80: $ 389,08t

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share and share amounts)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investment securities
Restricted cash and investments
Merchandise inventories
Deferred income taxes
Income tax refund receivable
Prepayments and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Investment securities
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Income taxes
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Deferred gain (Note 7)
Deferred income taxes
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Shareholders’ equity (Note 14):

Preferred stock, $1 par; authorized 500,000 shareshares issued and outstanding

Common stock, $.10 par; authorized 600,000,000esh#&ssued 120,091,158 shares at August 31,
2013, and 119,125,739 shares at August 25, 20tpuatstanding 115,092,113 shares at

August 31, 2013, and 115,362,048 shares at Audy@2
Capital in excess of par

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Common stock held in treasury, at cost (4,999,04Bes at August 31, 2013, and 3,763,691 shares

at August 25, 2012)
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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August 31, August 25,

2013 2012
$ 140,99¢ 92,33
4,00( 6,271
35,44: 126,28:
1,467,01 1,426,16
34,51( 69,51¢
13,48¢ —
161,55:. 47,60:
1,857,00! 1,768,171
1,732,54. 1,496,36!
22,97, 23,72
97,33t 84,81!
$ 3,709,86. 3,373,06!
$ = 15,00(
16,20( 16,20(
723,20( 674,20:
335,85:¢ 328,39¢
4,96¢ 31,85’
1,080,22. 1,065,65
500,27! 516,32(
289,19: 268,34:
218,08t 156,86¢
23,027 68,25«
12,00¢ 11,91¢
299,86! 259,18
1,569,62! 1,234,38.
(2,195 (1,84))
(280,24¢) (206,01
1,599,05! 1,297,62
$ 3,709,86. 3,373,06!
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FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulated

other
(in thousands, except per share Common Capital in Retained comprehensive Treasury
and share amounts) Stock excess of par earnings loss stock Total
Balance, August 28, 2010
(130,452,959 shares common stock;

16,043,278 shares treasury stock) $ 1465( $ 243,83: $ 166564 $ (7,04¢) $ (495,52) $ 1,421,555
Net income for the year 388,44! 388,44!
Unrealized gains on investment securities (net0o® $
million of taxes) 904 904
Other (261) (261)
Issuance of 819,995 common shares under incentns,p
including tax benefits 82 16,43( 16,51%
Purchase of 13,934,868 common shares for treasury (670,46¢) (670,46()
Issuance of 15,255 shares of treasury stock undentive
plans (Director compensation) 131 544 67¢
Stock-based compensation 14,05: 14,05:
Dividends declared on common stock, $0.695 pereshar (84,349 (84,349
Balance, August 27, 2011

(117,353,341 shares common stock;

29,962,891 shares treasury stock) $ 14,73  $ 274,44 $ 1,969,74 % (6,409 $ (1,165,44) $ 1,087,07.
Net income for the year 422 24( 422 24(
Unrealized gains on investment securities (neof $
million of taxes) 4,527 4,52,
Other 35 35
Issuance of 1,209,507 common shares under incepians,
including tax benefits 121 29,60: 29,72!
Purchase of 3,214,866 common shares for treasury (191,57) (191,57)
Retirement of 29,400,000 shares of treasury stock (2,940 (60,139 (1,087,30) 1,150,38; —
Issuance of 14,066 shares of treasury stock undentive
plans (Director compensation) 152 622 774
Stock-based compensation 15,12¢ 15,12¢
Dividends declared on common stock, $0.60 per share (70,307) (70,307)
Balance, August 25, 2012

(115,362,048 shares common stock;

3,763,691 shares treasury stock) $ 11,91 $ 259,18¢ $ 1,23438 % (184) $ (206,01) $ 1,297,62
Net income for the year 443 57! 443,57"
Unrealized gains on investment securities (ne0o4 $
million of taxes) (413) (417)
Other 59 5¢
Issuance of 965,419 common shares under incervs,p
including tax benefits 96 25,14 25,237
Purchase of 1,248,284 common shares for treasury (74,95 (74,95
Issuance of 12,930 shares of treasury stock undentive
plans (Director compensation) 27 728 75C
Stock-based compensation 15,50¢ 15,50¢
Dividends declared on common stock, $0.94 per share (108,339 (108,33))
Balance, August 31, 2013
(120,091,158 shares common stock; : .

4’999’045 shares treasury stock) $ 12,005 $ 299,86‘ $ 1,569,62‘ $ (2,19\) $ (280,24() $ 1,599,05

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating

activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred gain
Deferred income taxes

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Stock-based compensation

Loss on disposition of property and equipment,udilg impairment

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Merchandise inventories
Prepayments and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of restricted and unrestricted investsamirities

Sales of restricted and unrestricted investmentritess

Net change in restricted cash

Net proceeds from sale-leaseback

Capital expenditures

Proceeds from dispositions of property and equiimen
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Issuance of long-term debt
Payment of debt issuance costs
Repayments of long-term debt
Repurchases of common stock
Change in cash overdrafts
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Payment of dividends
Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Purchases of property and equipment awaiting psiregg$or payment,

included in accounts payable
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest, net of amounts capitalized

Years Ended

August 31, 2013

August 25, 2012

August 27, 2011

443570 $ 422240 $ 388,44
239,48 213,83! 182,45t
(15,129 (3,08) —
3,69: (24,32) 46,80¢
(13,23) (12,349 (4,745
16,25¢ 15,90: 14,72¢
5,82¢ 11,42 9,461
(40,85) (271,50)) (126,639)
(113,920) 23,83¢ (8,409
(44¢) (2,500) (4,889
(32,65¢) (36,49) 37,05"
(40,379 37,20¢ (23,799
19,74« (4,829 17,59:
471,97: 369,37 528,06«
(44,279 (211,14)) (352,08))
45,72¢ 334,91! 415,87
79,92 (80,389 —
345,24¢ 359,661 —
(744,42) (603,31) (345,26%)
3,214 1,95¢ 1,05¢
(314,59) (198,31)) (280,419)
2,060,001 362,301 46,00
(2,075,00) (347,300) (46,000)
— — 298,48:

— — (7,819
(16,200 (16,200) —
(74,95 (191,57)) (670,46()
71,74t 26,78¢ (47,72)
20,79¢ 24,90( 17,21¢
13,23 12,34 4,74¢
(108,339 (91,39() (83,439
(108,71() (220,13)) (488,99Y)
48,66¢ (49,079 (241,349
92,33 141,40 382,75
140,99¢ $ 92,33: $ 141,40t
57,37¢ $ 54,60¢ $ 36,22(
21,89t 24,00: 20,39t



Income taxes, net of refunds 272,74¢ 234, 74( 201,84
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.
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FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business and Summary of Sigimfint Accounting Policies:
Description of business

The Company operates a chain of more than 7,908rgkemerchandise retail discount stores in 46 gotis states, providing consumers with
a selection of competitively priced merchandisednvenient neighborhood stores. The Company’s mtsdaclude health and beauty aids,
packaged food and refrigerated products, home icigaupplies, housewares, stationery, seasonalsgyapparel and domestics. In the typical
Family Dollar store, the majority of the producte ariced at $10 or less, with many of the prodpcised at $Dor less. The Company manay
its business on the basis of one operating segment.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include towants of the Company and its subsidiaries, alflith are wholly- owned. All
intercompany balances and transactions have begimaied.

Fiscal year

The Company'’s fiscal year generally ends on ther8ay closest to August 31 of each year, whichltesuan extra week every six years.
Fiscal 2013 was a 53-week year, whereas fiscal 20tiXiscal 2011 were 52-week years.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated firgrstatements, in conformity with accounting piptes generally accepted in the United
States of America, requires management to makeat&s and assumptions. These estimates and assusgfiect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingessets and liabilities at the date of the finalhstatements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting pekitidal results could differ from these estimates.

Cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith an original maturity of three months or lés$e cash equivalents. The carrying
amount of the Company’s cash equivalents approxsiir value due to the short maturities of tHesestments and consists primarily of
money market funds and other overnight investmdrits. Company maintains cash deposits with majokdamhich from time to time may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company pécaty assesses the financial condition of theitnbns and believes that the risk of any
loss is remote. Payments due from banks for thandypcredit card, debit card and electronic berieditsactions are generally processed withir
24-72 hours and are classified as cash equivalents.

The Company maintains zero balance cash disburseaneounts with certain banks. Outstanding chetlexcess of funds on deposit with
respect to these banks, referred to as cash oftsidiee classified as Accounts Payable on the @limlsged Balance Sheets, and totaled $100.!
million at the end of fiscal 2013 . Cash overdradtaled $28.8 million at the end of fiscal 20%2hanges in these overdraft amounts are
recorded as financing activities on the Consolid&tatements of Cash Flows.

The Company’s wholly-owned captive insurance subpsjdnaintains balances in cash and cash equiwalkat are used in connection with the
Company’s retained workers’ compensation, genahility and automobile liability risks and are ragsignated for general corporate
purposes. These cash and cash equivalents balatalesl $2.7 million as of the end of fiscal 201@1&19.0 million as of the end of fiscal
2012 .

Investment securities

The Company classifies all investment securitieavadlable-for-sale. Securities accounted for aslable-forsale are required to be reporte
fair value with unrealized gains and losses, neaxés, excluded from net income and shown sepwr@tea component of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income within Shareholders’ EquityrenConsolidated Balance Sheets. The Companyis-sran investment securities
currently consist primarily of short-term bond maitéunds, municipal debt securities, and equityusées. The Company'’s long-term
investment securities currently consist of auctimie securities. See Notes 2 and 3 for more infooman the Company’s investment
securities.
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In addition to the cash and cash equivalents bakdiscussed above, the Company’s wholWyred captive insurance subsidiary also main
balances in investment securities that are nogdaged for general corporate purposes. These megstsecurities balances were $27.0 millior
as of the end of fiscal 2013 and $30.0 million fithe end of fiscal 2012 .

Restricted cash and investments

The Company has restricted cash and investmerttseéhze as collateral for certain of the Compaimgarance obligations. These restricted
funds cannot be withdrawn from the Company's accaithout the consent of the secured party. As ofjdst 31, 2013 , the Company held
$55.5 million in this restricted account, of whi$B5.4 million was included in Restricted Cash amgestments and $ 20.1 milliavas include:
in Other Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sh&atsclassification between current and non-curiehtised on the timing of expected
payments of the secured insurance obligations.i®usly, these obligations were collateralized usitandby letters of credit under the
Company's revolving credit facilities.

Additionally, in conjunction with the salleaseback transactions completed in fiscal 2013iandl 2012, certain proceeds from the transas
were placed into an escrow account with an indepetnithird-party in connection with like-kind exchligntransactions, which permits the
deferral of a portion of the tax gain associatetthhie sale of the stores. The Company intendedéahese proceeds to purchase additional
new stores and was required to do so within 188 dfayn the closing of the transactions to realimdeferral. During the 180 -day deferral
period, these assets were classified as Resti@zst and Investments in the Consolidated BalaneetShThe Company had no restricted cas
and investments balance related to these transac®of the end of fiscal 2013 and $ 80.4 milasrof the end of fiscal 2012 .

Merchandise inventories

Inventories are valued using the retail methodetas retail prices less mark-on percentages, wap@noximates the lower of first-in, firstit
(FIFO) cost or market. The Company records adjusten® inventory through cost of goods sold wheaikerice reductions, or markdowns,
are taken against on-hand inventory. In additiba,Gompany makes estimates and judgments regaedimang other things, initial markups,
markdowns, future demand for specific product catieg and market conditions, all of which can digantly impact inventory valuation.
These estimates and judgments are based on theadjmpl of a consistent methodology each perioge Thmpany estimates inventory losses
for damaged, lost or stolen inventory (inventoryirgkage) for the period from the most recent phgfsicventory to the financial statement d.
The accrual for estimated inventory shrinkage sebleon the trailing twelve-month actual inventdmyirskage rate and can fluctuate from
period to period based on the timing of the physmaentory counts. Stores conduct a physical inwgnat least annually.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depienifdr financial reporting purposes is calculatesing the straight-line method over the

estimated useful lives of the related assets. éawdhold improvements, this depreciation is ovestiorter of the term of the related lease
(generally between five and fifteen years) inclgdianewal options or the asset’s useful econorfdc li

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and building improvements 5-40 year:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 year:
Transportation equipment 3-10 year:
Leasehold improvements 5-10 year:

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurreadimection with developing, obtaining and implemegtsoftware for internal use. Capitali.
costs are amortized over the expected economioflifiee assets, generally ranging from three toteygars.

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairmehémever events or changes in circumstances inditat¢he carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Historically, impairmerstsies on fixed assets, which typically relate tonadrstore closings, have not been materi
the Company’s financial position or results of @iems.

Capitalized interest
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The Company capitalizes interest on borrowed fuhdsg the construction of property and equipmertie Company capitalized $7.3
million , $4.0 million and $0.6 million of interesbsts during fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 and fi@l1 , respectively.

Treasury share retirement

The Company periodically retires treasury sharesiaed through share repurchases and returns #iases to the status of authorized but
unissued. The Company accounts for treasury stacisactions under the cost method. For each resitquiof common stock, the number of
shares and the acquisition price for those sharadded to the existing treasury stock count atad ¥alue. Thus, the average cost per share is
re-averaged each time shares are acquired. Whesutseshares are retired, the Company's poliay édlocate the excess of the repurchase
price over the par value of shares acquired to Retlained Earnings and Capital in Excess of Pag.pidrtion allocated to Capital in Excess of
Par is determined by applying a percentage, detexuidy dividing the number of shares to be retingthe number of shares issued, to the
balance of Capital in Excess of Par as of theaetimt date.

Revenues

The Company recognizes revenue, net of returnsaled tax, at the time the customer tenders payfoeand takes possession of the
merchandise.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes the purchase cost of medi$mand transportation costs to the Company’silbligion centers and stores. Buying,
distribution center and occupancy costs, includiagreciation, are not included in cost of salesaAssult, cost of sales may not be compa
to those of other retailers that may include tresss in their cost of sales.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

All operating costs, except transportation costhéoCompany’s distribution centers and storesireleded in selling, general, and
administrative expenses (“SG&A”"). Buying, distrimrt center and occupancy costs, including deprieciaare included in SG&A rather than
cost of sales.

Insurance liabilities

The Company is primarily self-insured for healthesgroperty loss, workers’ compensation, genéahbillity, and auto liability costs. These
liabilities are based on the total estimated coktdaims filed and estimates of claims incurred ot reported, less amounts paid against suct
claims, and are not discounted.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs, net of co-op recoveries fromdans, are expensed during the period of the adesntent and amounted to $18.9 million ,
$19.6 million and $17.1 million in fiscal 2013 séial 2012 and fiscal 2011 , respectively.

Vendor allowances

The Company receives vendor support in the forimash payments or allowances through a varietyioftrersements such as purchase
discounts, cooperative advertising, markdowns, doans, and volume rebates. We have agreementsaiittiors setting forth the specific
conditions for each allowance or payment. In acancé with ASC 605-50, "Revenue Recognition - CustoRayments and Incentives,"
depending on the arrangement, we either recogh&altowance as a reduction of current costs ardbE payment over the period the relatec
merchandise is sold. If the payment is a reimbuesdrfor costs incurred, it is offset against thiated costs; otherwise, it is treated as a
reduction to the cost of merchandise.

Operating leases

Except for its Store Support Center and distributienters, the Company generally conducts its tipesafrom leased facilities. Generally,
store real estate leases have an initial term lestviree and fifteen years with multiple renewaliops for additional five -year periods. The
Company also has leases for equipment generallyledtse terms of five years to ten years.
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All of the Company’s store leases are classified@rating leases. The Company recognizes renpanse for its store leases on a straligig-
basis over the base, non-cancelable lease ternpufposes of recognizing incentives, premiums aminnum rental expenses, the Company
uses the date of initial possession to begin amaiitin, which is generally when the Company entegsspace and begins to make
improvements in preparation for intended use. Epamt improvement allowances and rent holidaysCthmapany records a deferred rent
liability at the inception of the lease term andoatizes the deferred rent over the terms of thedeas reductions to rent expense on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Certain leases provide for contingent rental payimbased upon a percentage of store sales. Thedgnagcrues for contingent rental
expense as it becomes probable that specified tsaggsts will be met.

Income taxes

The Company records deferred income tax assethbadnilities for the expected future tax consequenaetemporary differences between the
financial reporting basis and the income tax bakits assets and liabilities. The Company estimatmtingent income tax liabilities based on
an assessment of the probability of the incomerédated exposures and settlements related to antésix positions. The Company intends to
reinvest undistributed earnings of foreign subsidgindefinitely and anticipates earnings would e repatriated unless it was tax efficient to
do so. If earnings were distributed, the Companyldide subject to U.S. taxes and withholding tapeagable to various foreign governments.
See Note 10 for more information on the Companyt®ime taxes.

Stock-based compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense rétatesdstock-based awards based on the fair \@ltise awards on the grant date. The
Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option-pricingdal to estimate the grant-date fair value oftigls option awards. The grant-date fair
value of the Company’s performance share rights@svis based on the stock price on the grant @ampensation expense for the Company
stock-based awards is recognized on a straighblses, net of estimated forfeitures, over theisergeriod of each award. See Note 13 for
more information on the Company’s stock-based carsgiion plans.

Other Income

The Company classifies income earned on non-medib@atransactions, which primarily includes feeargled to customers when receiving
cash back on debit card transactions, in a lime itaptioned Other Income below Operating ProfieSghamounts were previously classified ir
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of the amounts on thesBbdated Statements of Income and the Consolidata#ments of Cash Flows in fiscal 2
and fiscal 2011 have been made to conform wittptheentation of fiscal 2013. These reclassificatiare not material.

New accounting pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Up@&te3-02 "Reporting of Amounts
Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehenkiceme” ("ASU 2013-02"). ASU 2013-02 requires autitg to provide information
about the amounts reclassified out of accumulatieeracomprehensive income by component. The AStfféstive for annual periods and
interim periods within those periods beginning mBecember 15, 2012. The ASU will be effective ttee Company beginning in the first
quarter of fiscal 2014 and is not expected to rew@aterial impact on the Company's Consolidatedriial Statements.

2. Fair Value Measurements:
Fair value accounting standards define fair vakitha price that would be received to sell an amspaid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the ureagent date. The following fair value hierarchipgtizes the inputs used to measure fair
value into three levels, giving the highest priptid Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Le8anputs.

* Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities
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» Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices includgttiin Level 1 that are observable for the assdiability, either directly or
indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assetliabilities in active markets, quoted pricesifientical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, inpateer than quoted prices that are observable toasiset or liability, or inputs that are
derived principally from or corroborated by obsdateamarket data by correlation or other means.

e Level 3—nputs that are unobservable for the asset oflilial

The unobservable inputs in Level 3 can only be usedeasure fair value to the extent that obseevadguts in Level 1 and Level 2 are not
available. The following table represents the Camyfsafair value hierarchy as of August 31, 2018d &ugust 25, 2012 , for items that are
required to be measured at fair value on a reaybasis:

August 31, 2013

(in thousands) Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $ 26,200 $ 26,20C $ — 8 —
Investment securities:

Auction rate securities $ 22,97 — — 22,97"

Short-term bond mutual fund $ 4,00( 4,00( — —
Restricted cash and investmeits:

Money market funds $ 437 437 — —

Municipal debt securities $ 55,05 — 55,05t —
Other assets:

Mutual funds® $ 20,04 20,04 — —

August 25, 2012

(in thousands) Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $ 18,90: $ 18,90: $ — 3 =
Investment securities:

Auction rate securities $ 23,72( — — 23,72(

Short-term bond mutual fund $ 5,00( 5,00( — —

Equity securities $ 1,271 1,271 — —
Restricted cash and investmeits:

Municipal debt securities $ 55,301 — 55,30: —
Other assets:

Mutual funds® $ 17,90 17,90: — —

(1) Asof August 31, 2013, restricted cash and investsiof $35.4 million and $20.1 million were inchatlin Restricted Cash and Investments and Othest&\aespectively, in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. As of August 25, 2012, restricted cashirarestments of $45.9 million and $9.4 million weéneluded in Restricted Cash and Investments anéiQXksets, respectively, in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. See Note 1 for more information.

(2) Represents assets held pursuant to a deferred osatfmn plan for certain key management employees.

On a non-recurring basis, the Company adjustsioePt@perty and Equipment to fair value through @anment charges. Property and
Equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever ev@ntchanges in circumstances indicate that thgingramount of an asset or asset grouy
may not be recoverable. The fair value of the Prtgpmnd Equipment is determined based on a disedurash flow analysis using Level 3
inputs. The Company estimates future cash flowsdbas historical experience and its expectatiorfstofe performance. Impairment charges
were not material during fiscal 2013, fiscal 2@t Ziscal 2011 .

Level 2 Input:

All of the assets classified as Level 2 are valogd third-party pricing service which uses mafriicing to value the assets. The Company
believes that while a majority of the assets valusidg Level 2 inputs currently trade in active keds and
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prices could be obtained for identical assetscthssification of these investments as Level 2aserappropriate when matrix pricing is used.
Auction Rate Securitie

The Company's auction rate securities (“ARS”") areexempt bonds that are collateralized by federallgrgnteed student loans and are va
using Level 3 inputs. While the underlying secestgenerally have long-term nominal maturities éxaeed one year, the interest rates reset
periodically in scheduled auctions (generally every35 days). Due to the continued issues in tblead credit and capital markets, specifically
as it relates to the ARS market, the Company's p&Eolio experienced sustained failed auction$aifed auction typically occurs when the
number of securities submitted for sale in theianotxceeds the number of purchase bids. As of swugl, 2013 , all of the Company’s $25.7
million par value investments were subject to fhdeictions. As a result of the failed auctions,ittterest rates on the investments reset to the
established rates per the applicable investmeatinff statements. The Company will not be abléquidate the investments until a successful
auction occurs, a buyer is found outside the angiiocess, the securities are called or refinabgdtie issuer, or the underlying securities
mature.

The Company does not currently expect to liquidatg ARSs going forward through the normal auctioscpss. However, the Company does
expect to be able to liquidate substantially alit®femaining ARS portfolio at par through issaalls, refinancings, or upon maturity. During
fiscal 2013 , the Company liquidated $0.2 millidraaction rate securities at par as a result aféssalls. As of August 31, 2013, all of the
Company's ARS portfolio was subject to failed awtsiand was classified as lotegm assets due to the continued failure of thé@uproces
and the continued uncertainty regarding the tinahfyture liquidity.

The Company had a temporary gross unrealized [o82.9 million ( $1.7 million , net of taxes) witlespect to its ARS portfolio as of

August 31, 2013 . Changes in the unrealized lossnatuded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive vagisin Shareholders’ Equity on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Because there istive atarket for the Company’ARS portfolio, the fair value of each securitysvegetermine
through the use of a discounted cash flow analysisy Level 3 inputs. The two most significant usetvable inputs used in the analysis are
the weighted average expected term to liquidatesdearities and the illiquidity factor applied teetdiscount rate. The weighted average
expected term assumption used in the analysissisdban the Company's estimate of the timing ofréuliguidity, which assumes that the
securities will be called or refinanced by the &sor repurchased by the broker dealers prior tiuritg. The discount rates used in the analysi
are based on market rates for similar liquid tagregt securities with comparable ratings and magsriDue to the uncertainty surrounding the
timing of future liquidity, a factor was applied tioe discount rates to reflect the illiquidity dftinvestments. These inputs used in Company’
analysis are sensitive to market conditions andCbipany's valuation of its ARS portfolio can chausignificantly based on the assumptions
used. As of August 31, 2013, a 100 basis pointise or decrease in the illiquidity factor alorithwa 12 -month increase or decrease in the
weighted average term could result in a gross limezhloss ranging from $1.6 million to $4.7 miltio

The Company also evaluated each of its ARS forretthemn-temporary impairment. The Company's evabmatvas based on an analysis of the
credit rating and parity ratio of each securityeTdarity ratio is the ratio of trust assets avadddbr distribution to creditors to the trust
obligations to those creditors. The credit quaditghe Company's ARS portfolio remains high andgbeurities had a weighted average parity
ratio of 122.9% as of August 31, 2013 . Based esdHactors, the Company concluded that there washer-thartemporary impairment as
August 31, 2013 .

The following table summarizes the change in tleviaue of the Company’s ARS portfolio measurethgd.evel 3 inputs during fiscal 2013
and fiscal 2012 :

Years Ended

(in thousands) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012

Beginning Balance $ 23,72(  $ 107,45t
Net unrealized gain/(loss) included in other corhpresive income (543) 7,181
Sales (200) (90,929

Ending Balance $ 22,977 $ 23,72

The transfers out of Level 3 during fiscal 2012utesd from issuer call notices (at par). The Conypaeated the call notices as quoted prices i
an inactive market (Level 2 inputs).
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Additional Fair Value Disclosure

The estimated fair value of the Company’s curremnt lang-term debt was $546.4 million as of Augukt2013 , and $576.4 million as of
August 25, 2012 The Company has both public notes and privatesphent notes. The fair value for the public nogeddtermined using Lev

1 inputs as quoted prices in active markets fontidal assets or liabilities are available. The falue of the portion of the debt that is private
placement notes is determined through the usalisfc@unted cash flow analysis using Level 3 inpstshere are no quoted prices in active
markets for these notes. The discount rate usttkianalysis was based on borrowing rates avaitaliltee Company for debt of the same
remaining maturities, issued in the same privaaeqrhent debt market. The fair value of the Compaayirent and long-term debt was greate
than the carrying value of the debt by $29.9 millas of August 31, 2013, and $43.9 million as ngist 25, 2012 . See Note 6 for more
information on the Company’s long-term debt.

3. Investment Securities:

All of the Company’s investment securities are entty classified as available-for-sale due to tine that the Company does not intend to hol
the securities to maturity and does not purchasedlurities for the purpose of selling them to enalprofit on short-term differences in price.
Available-for-sale securities are carried at estaddair value, with unrealized gains and lossesny, reported as a component of
Shareholders’ Equity. The Company'’s investmentsisted of the following available-for-sale secestiat the end of fiscal 2013 and fiscal
2012 (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding
August 31, 2013 Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Auction rate securities $ 25,65( $ — 3 2,67 ©® 22,977
Short-term bond mutual fund $ 4,00( — — 4,00(
Municipal debt securities $ 54,95 101 — 55,05
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding
August 25, 2012 Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Auction rate securities $ 25,85( $ —  $ 213C @  $ 23,72(
Short-term bond mutual fund $ 5,00( — — 5,00(
Equity securities $ 1,97¢ — 70¢ 1,271
Municipal debt securities $ 55,03¢ 267 — 55,30:

(1) The gross unrealized holding losses for fiscal 2@ fiscal 2012 were in a continuous unrealizeg fwosition for 12 months or longer.

As discussed in Note 2 above, substantially alhefCompany’s auction rate securities are not atlgrdiquid and have contractual maturities
ranging from 24 years to 28 years. The Compaoyfier debt securities include primarily municipahds and have weighted average matu
of less than one year.

Proceeds from sales of investment securities alaHmr-sale during fiscal 2013 were $45.7 millicompared to $334.9 million in fiscal 2012
and $415.9 million in fiscal 2011 . No materialmgbr losses were realized on those sales fol 28d:8 and no gains or losses were realized
on those sales for fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 .

The Company also holds investments in mutual fumd@®nnection with a deferred compensation plarcéstain key management employees.
These investments are classified as trading sexsuahd are included, at fair value, in other assptthe Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
Company records an offsetting deferred compensé#bility in Other Liabilities. The fair value dhe deferred compensation plan assets wa:s
$20.0 million as of the end of fiscal 2013 and ®1million as of the end of fiscal 2012 . See Nateb&low for more information on the
deferred compensation plan.

4. Prepayments and Other Current Assets:

Prepayments and Other Current Assets consistdtedbliowing at the end of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2 :
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(in thousands) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012
Vendor accounts receivable (net) $ 70,57¢ $ 14,94¢
Prepaid rent 45,68 —
Other® 45,28¢ 32,65¢

$ 161,55: $ 47,60

(1)  Other current assets consist primarily of accrugerest receivable, short-term insurance assetsyandor receivables, and other prepaid expenses.

The Company performed an evaluation over an alleedor doubtful accounts on all accounts receivablances and concluded the balance
are not material to the financial statements ioafi2013, fiscal 2012 or fiscal 2011. The increasthe accounts receivable balance is due
primarily to the Company's newly formed relatiopshiith McLane in fiscal 2013.

5. Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment is recorded at cost andstedsof the following at the end of fiscal 2013idiscal 2012 :

(in thousands) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012
Buildings and building improvements $ 567,13 $ 543,39:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,949,87. 1,755,15.
Transportation equipment 93,96: 89,52(
Leasehold improvements 552,21¢ 484,38:
Construction in progress 131,79: 46,03:

3,294,98! 2,918,48
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,665,45. 1,515,26!

1,629,52 1,403,211
Land 103,01¢ 93,14«

$ 1,732,54.  $ 1,496,36!

Depreciation expense was $238.9 million , $204 /ianiand $179.5 million for fiscal 2013 , fiscaD22 and fiscal 2011 , respectively. The
increase in gross property and equipment, befgpeed@tion, is not commensurate with capital exjienes due to the significant amount of
assets sold during the year under sale-leasebaukairtions. Refer to Note 7 for additional inforimaibon sale-leaseback transactions.

6. Current and Long-Term Debt:

Current and long-term debt consisted of the foltayat the end of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 :

(in thousands) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012
5.24% Notes due September 27, 2015 $ 48,60( $ 64,80(
5.41% Notes due September 27, 2015 169,00( 169,00(
5.00% Notes due February 1, 2021 298,87! 298,72(
516,47" 532,52
Less: current portion 16,20( 16,20(
Long-term portion $ 500,27¢ $ 516,32

On January 28, 2011 , the Company issued $300omidif 5.00% unsecured senior notes due Febru&921, (the “2021 Notes”), through a
public offering. The Company’s proceeds were apipnaxely $298.5 million , net of an issuance disdafr1.5 million . In addition, the
Company incurred issuance costs of approximatel§ 8gllion . Both the discount and issuance costs@ing amortized to interest expense
over the term of the 2021 Notes. Interest on tt&El2Qotes is payable semi-annually in arrears ol ffiay of February and August of each
year, commencing cAugust 1, 2011 . The 2021 Notes rgd¢i passun right of payment with the Company’s other unsedusenior
indebtedness and will be senior in right of paymerany subordinated indebtedness. The Companyretiaem the 2021 Notes in whole at
time or in part from time to time, at the optiontbé Company, subject to a make-whole premiumdtiten, upon the occurrence of certain
change of control
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triggering events, the Company may be require@pairchase the 2021 Notes, at a price equal to ¥1Beir principal amount, plus accrued
and unpaid interest to the date of repurchase.

On September 27, 2005 , the Company obtained $266mihrough a private placement of unsecuredaemotes due September 27, 2015
(the “2015 Notes”), to a group of institutional esdited investors. The 2015 Notes were issued inttanches at par and rapéri passun

right of payment with the Company’s other unsecigeuior indebtedness. The first tranche has areggtg principal amount of $169 million ,
is payable in a single installment on Septembef15 , and bears interest at a rate of 5.41%ameum from the date of issuance. The secon
tranche has an aggregate principal amount of $8ibmj matures on September 27, 2015 , with amatibn commencing on September 27,
2011 , and bears interest at a rate of 5.24% mpaira from the date of issuance. The second tramabe required principal payment of $16.2
million on September 27, 2011 , and on each Sepeibthereafter to and including September 27520daterest on the 2015 Notes is
payable semi-annually in arrears on the"@ay of March and September of each year. The 2@8d\:ontain certain restrictive financial
covenants, which include a consolidated debt tcalidated total capitalization ratio, a fixed chaapverage ratio, and a priority debt to
consolidated net worth ratio. As of August 31, 20113e Company was in compliance with all such ocaves.

On November 17, 2010, the Company amended the [861es to remove the subsidiary co-borrower andudisidiary guarantors.
Credit Facilities

On November 17, 2010 , the Company entered in®aafour-year unsecured revolving credit facilitythva syndicate of lenders for
borrowings of up to $400 million . The credit faiilmatures on November 17, 2014 , and provideswor one-year extensions that require
lender consent. Any borrowings under the credififp@ccrue interest at a variable rate basedtmrtsterm market interest rates. The credit
facility replaced the previous 364-day $250 milliemsecured revolving credit facility.

On August 17, 2011 , the Company entered into afivmayear unsecured revolving credit facility with a digate of lenders for borrowings
up to $300 million . The credit facility matures Angust 17, 2016 , and provides for two, one-yedemrsions that require lender consent. Any
borrowings under the credit facility accrue inte¢@gsa variable rate based on short-term marketest rates. The credit facility replaced the
Company’s previous five-year $200 million unsecucestlit facility.

As of August 31, 2013 , the Company had no outstaniorrowings under the credit facilities. As ofigust 25, 2012 , the Company t&ib.0
million in outstanding borrowings under the crdditilities. During fiscal 2013 , the Company hadaaerage daily outstanding balance of
$141.5 million at an annualized weighted-averagerest rate of 1.5%nder its unsecured revolving credit facilitieseTdredit facilities conta
certain restrictive financial covenants, which ud# a consolidated debt to consolidated total abgdtion ratio, a fixed charge coverage ratio,
and a priority debt to consolidated net worth ragie of August 31, 2013 , the Company was in coamué with all such covenants.

7. Sale-Leaseback Transactions

During fiscal 2013, the Company completed saledbask transactions under which it sold a total5#f &ores to unrelated third-parties. Net
proceeds from these sales were approximately $388i0n . Upon closing of the transactions, then@any realized a gain on the sale of the
stores of $84.7 million , of which approximately.$2nillion was recognized immediately and approxeha$82.3 million was deferred and
will be amortized over the initial lease term.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed saledbask transactions under which it sold a total#f &tores to unrelated third-parties. Net
proceeds from these sales were $359.7 million nuglosing of the transactions, the Company defeargéin of approximately $171.6 million
realized on the sale of the stores and will amertiie gain over the initial lease term.

Concurrent with these sales in fiscal 2013 and 28#2Company entered into agreements to leasgrdiperties back from the purchasers ovel
initial lease terms of 15 years. The master lefmethe 532 stores includes an initial term of yi&ars and four , five -year renewal options anc
provides for the Company to evaluate each storeithghlly upon certain events during the life oétlease, including individual renewal
options. The Company classified these leases aatopgleases, actively uses the leased propemidsonsiders the leases as normal
leasebacks under ASC 840. The deferred gain oe th@ssactions includes both a current and norentigortion, with the current portion
based on the amount that is expected to amortigetbe next 12 months. The current and non-cuperitons are included in Accrued
Liabilities and Deferred Gain, respectively, on @ensolidated Balance Sheets.
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Additionally, in fiscal 2013 the Company enteretbian agreement with an unrelated third-party testrmict new stores to lease under a build-
to-suit structure. The transaction allows for thestruction of stores up to $125 million throughdd9, 2014 . Under this agreement, the
unrelated third-party will fund the constructiontbé stores, and the Company will act as the cocisbn agent during the construction period.
Upon the completion of the stores’ constructiore, @ompany will lease the property under a 15 -gparating lease. Each of the assets
currently included in the portfolio are classifiesl operating leases under ASC 840, and all newdctions associated with this agreement wil
be assessed for classification as an operating.lé@sonnection with this agreement, the Comparsydold 29 parcels of land to the unrelated
third-party for proceeds of approximately $10.2limil . These sales qualify as sale-leaseback tcéinsa under ASC 840.

8. Accrued Liabilities:

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following &ttend of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 :

(in thousands)

August 31, 2013

August 25, 2012

Compensation $ 101,19¢ $ 99,67
Taxes other than income taxes 95,82t 91,207
Self-insurance liabilities 52,22¢ 52,22
Other® 86,60: 85,29

$ 335,85 $ 328,39¢

(1) Other accrued liabilities consist primarily of @ert store rental accruals, current portion of defiéigain on sale-leaseback transactions, medisatance accruals, accrued interest, and litigatcamuals.

9. Other Liabilities:

Other liabilities consisted of the following at teed of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 :

(in thousands)

August 31, 2013

August 25, 2012

Self-insurance liabilities $ 179,93( $ 184,63!
Other® 109,26: 83,70:
$ 289,19: $ 268,34

(1) Other liabilities consist primarily of deferred temcome taxes and deferred compensation.

10. Income Taxes:

The provisions for income taxes in fiscal 2013¢él 2012 and fiscal 2011 were as follows:

Years Ended

(in thousands) August 31, 2013

August 25, 2012

August 27, 2011

Current:

Federal $ 216,077 $ 228,24! $ 155,89:
State 24,927 36,70¢ 25,97«
Foreign 2,42¢ 1,06t 41
243,42¢ 266,01¢ 181,90¢

Deferred:
Federal 6,78( (19,649 44,96
State (3,087 (4,679 1,83:
Foreign — — 9
3,69: (24,32)) 46,80:
Total $ 247,12; % 241,69¢ $ 228,71:
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The following table summarizes the components obime tax expense in fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 #swhf 2011 :

Years Ended

August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012 August 27, 2011

Income tax % of pre-tax Income tax % of pre-tax Income tax % of pre-tax
(in thousands) expense income expense income expense income
Computed federal income tax $ 241,74« 35.(% $ 232,37¢ 35.(% $ 216,00! 35.(%
State income taxes, net of
federal income tax benefit 19,76" 2.8 17,89: 2.7 17,69t 2.¢
Tax credits (12,287 (1.9 (9,810 (1.5 (10,010 (1.6
Foreign rate differences (5,290 (0.8 (2,379 (0.9 684 0.1
Uncertain tax positions 6,78: 1.C 2,49: 0.4 3,79¢ 0.€
Valuation allowance (247) 0.C 1,73 0.3 1,56¢ 0.3
Other (3,357 (0.5 (609) (0.2 (1,025 (0.2
Actual income tax expense  $ 247,12: 35.6% $ 241,69¢ 36.£% $ 228,71: 37.1%

The tax effects of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities as of the end c
fiscal 2013 and the end of fiscal 2012 , were #eVis:

August 31, August 25,
(in thousands) 2013 2012
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Excess of book over tax basis of property and eqaig $ 101,86! $ 109,39
Deferred income tax assets:
Excess of tax over book basis of inventories $ 25,43t $ 26,35¢
Nondeductible accruals for:
Insurance 10,82« 12,39¢
Compensation 37,58( 34,71°
Net operating losses 6,26¢ 7,12:
Deferred rent 24,39¢ 19,06:
Litigation charge 1,78¢ 4,14¢
Other 12,547 12,59
Gross deferred income tax assets 118,84( 116,40(
Less: valuation allowance (5,489 (5,730
Net deferred tax assets $ 113,35 $ 110,67(

The Company had state net operating loss carryfolsvaf $145.4 million as of August 31, 2013 , ad@&4 million as of August 25, 2012 , in
various states. These carryforwards expire atrdiffeintervals up to fiscal year 2033. Managemensaers all available evidence in
determining the likelihood that a deferred tax tgsk not be realized.

The Company classifies accrued interest expenspamalties related to uncertain tax positions esmponent of income tax expense. Interes
and penalties increased income tax expense byndillidn in fiscal 2013 , reduced income tax expehges0.6 million in fiscal 2012 , and
increased income tax expense by $1.0 million icafi011 . The increase in fiscal 2013 relateshBinges in uncertain tax positions as
compared to changes in uncertain tax positionsxgdiscal 2012 and additional uncertain tax posgicecorded during fiscal 2011 .

As of August 31, 2013 , the Company had a liabiéhated to uncertain tax positions of $30.2 milliancluding a gross unrecognized tax
benefit of $24.1 million and accrued interest ardgities of $6.1 million . The related non-currdeterred tax asset balance was $6.9 million
as of August 31, 2013 . If the Company were to @ilean all unrecognized tax benefits recorded, apipnately $23.2 million of the gross
unrecognized tax benefits, including penalties @xdeffected interest of $6.1 million , would resalincome tax benefits in the income
statement of a future period. A reconciliationoé beginning and ending amount of total unrecoghiag benefits is as follows:
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Unrecognized Tax Interest and
(in thousands) Benefit Penalties Total
Balance at August 28, 2010 $ 18,33t $ 509 $ 23,43:
Increases related to prior year tax positions 6,30¢ 1,79¢ 8,10¢
Decreases related to prior year tax positions (4,472 — (4,4772)
Increases related to current year tax positions 3,19( 53C 3,72(
Settlements during the period (1,542 (559) (2,09%)
Lapse of statute of limitations (1,627 (795) (2,417
Balance at August 27, 2011 $ 20,19 $ 6,077 $ 26,27
Increases related to prior year tax positions 1,145 1,66¢ 2,81t
Decreases related to prior year tax positions (3,899 (1,427%) (5,319
Increases related to current year tax positions 4,87¢ 44z 5,321
Settlements during the period (3,586€) (1,350 (4,93¢)
Lapse of statute of limitations (1,229 (549 (1,779
Balance at August 25, 2012 $ 17,51 $ 4,861 $ 22,37
Increases related to prior year tax positions 877 99¢ 1,87¢
Decreases related to prior year tax positions (997) (12) (1,00¢)
Increases related to current year tax positions 11,01: 1,752 12,76«
Settlements during the period (2,962) (1,069 (4,02¢)
Lapse of statute of limitations (1,340 (477 (1,817
Balance at August 31, 2013 $ 24,100 % 6,060 $ 30,16

On a quarterly and annual basis, the Company asdounehe effects of open uncertain tax positioms the related interest and penalties. The
Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax dsagencome tax in multiple foreign, state anddbjarisdictions. As of August 31, 2013he
Company was subject to U.S. federal tax and foreigaminations for fiscal years ending subsequeB0@9® . With few exceptions, the
Company is subject to state and local income taxréxations for fiscal years ending subsequent 6920

The amount of future unrecognized tax positions @ayeduced because the statute of limitation®hkpgised or the tax position is resolved
with the taxing authority. It is reasonably possitiiat during the next 12 months the unrecogniardénefit may be reduced by a rangeert
to $4.8 million due to settlements of audits byinigxauthorities. Such unrecognized tax benefigtegbrimarily to state tax issues.

As of August 31, 2013, the Company has not providgdn its cumulative undistributed earnings o&fgn subsidiaries of approximately
$21.5 million , because it is the Company’s intentio reinvest these earnings indefinitely. Thewation of the unrecognized deferred tax
liability related to these earnings is complex #m&l calculation is not practicable. If earnings evdistributed, the Company would be subjec
U.S. taxes and withholding taxes payable to varfousign governments. Based on the facts and cistamces at that time, the Company w«
determine whether a credit for foreign taxes alygaaid would be available to reduce or offset th8.Wax liability. The Company anticipates
earnings would not be repatriated unless it wagtfigient to do so.

11. Employee Benefit Plans:

Incentive compensation plan

The Company has an incentive profit-sharing plaictvallows for payments to certain employees affiders at an aggregate annual amount
not to exceed 7% of the Company’s consolidatednmebefore income taxes and certain incentive cosgigm. Expenses under the profit-
sharing plan were $9.4 million in fiscal 2013, & &illion in fiscal 2012 and $17.8 million in fiat2011 .

Compensation deferral plans
The Company has a voluntary compensation defelaal pnder Section 401(k) of the Internal RevenodeC available to eligible
employees. At the discretion of the Board of Dioest the Company makes contributions to the plaichvare allocated to participants, and in

which they become vested, in accordance with foasiahd schedules defined by the plan. Company sgpédar contributions to the plan w
$6.2 million in fiscal 2013 , $3.2 million in fist2012 and $4.0
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million in fiscal 2011 , and are included in SejjiGeneral and Administrative expenses on the Cataded Statements of Income.

The Company has a deferred compensation plan toderaertain key management employees the abditiefer a portion of their base
compensation and bonuses. The plan is an unfunoleglialified plan. The deferred amounts and earrtilggeon are payable to participants
designated beneficiaries, at either specified &itlates, or upon separation from service or d&htk. Company does not make contributions tc
this plan or guarantee earnings.

12. Commitments and Contingencies:

Operating leases and other contractual obligations

The majority of the rental expense incurred byG@oepany relates to its stores and the majoritysodtiores are leased under agreements that
generally have an initial term between five antk&h years and provide for fixed rentals. Additignanost of the Company’s leases require

additional payments based upon a percentage o, galgperty taxes, insurance premiums, or commea @raintenance charges. Rental
expenses on all operating leases, both cancelatlla@n-cancelable, for fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2014 &scal 2011 were as follows:

(in thousands) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012 August 27, 2011
Minimum rentals, net of minor sublease rentéls $ 555,100 $ 481,87. $ 429,94
Contingent rentals 9,057 8,46¢ 7,86:

$ 564,16: $ 490,33¢ $ 437,80:

(1) Minimum rentals, net of minor sublease rentedse increased in fiscal 2013 primarily as a resithe new stores opened during fiscal 2013 andleases as a result of stores sold under saledaak
transactions.

Aggregate minimum annual rentals under operatiagds as of August 31, 2013, are as follows:

Minimum

(in thousands) Rentals
Fiscal 2014 $ 515,25
Fiscal 2015 474,60:
Fiscal 2016 426,78t
Fiscal 2017 381,19t
Fiscal 2018 328,52°
Thereafter 1,434,771
Total minimum rentals $ 3,561,13

Additionally, the Company has outstanding standittets of credit (which are primarily renewed oreanual basis), of which the majority are
used as surety for future premium and deductibjeneats to the Company’s workers’ compensation aweral liability insurance carrier. The
following table shows the Company’s other commémiamitments as of August 31, 2013 :

Total Amounts

(in thousands) Committed
Standby letters of credit $ 48,76'
Surety bonds 37,03¢

Total $ 85,80:
Litigation

The Company is engaged in a number of legal pracgedThe matters or groups of related mattersudised below, if decided adversely to
Company, or settled by the Company, individuallyrothe aggregate, may result in liability matet@the Company's financial condition or
results of operations.
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Wage and Hour Class Actions

Since 2004, certain individuals who held the positbf store manager for the Company have filed lawslleging that the Company violated
the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA"), and/or sianiktate laws, by classifying them as “exempt” emyeés who are not entitled to overtime
compensation. Some of the cases also seek to prasamllective actions under the FLSA or as d&si®ns under state laws. Plaintiffs seek
recovery of overtime pay, liquidated damages, atgs' fees, and court costs.

The Multi -District Litigation

Beginning in January 2001 , the Company has beeiad in a series of cases in which certain Skba@agers have alleged that they were
improperly classified as exempt employees undeF#ieLabor Standards Act ("FLSA"). Current andnfier Store Managers have filed
lawsuits alleging that the Company violated the Kla#®id/or similar state laws, by classifying themf@empt" employees who are not entitled
to overtime compensation. The majority of the caaigh in each action also request recovery of awerpay, liquidated damages, and
attorneys' fees, and court costs.

The first two of the MDL cases af&race v. Family Dollar Stores, InandWard v. Family Dollar Stores, In¢filed in May 2004 and June
2006, respectively, and were pending in the U.Striat Court for the Western District of North Chna, Charlotte Division (the "N.C. Federal
Court"). In these cases, the court entered ordedgf) that the plaintiffs were not similarly sited and, therefore, that neither nationwide
notice nor collective treatment under the FLSApprapriate.

On July 9, 2009 , the N.C. Federal Court grantedrsary judgment against Irene Grace on the meriteofmisclassification claim under the
FLSA. To date, the N.C. Federal Court has granesudnmary judgments ruling that the Family Dolléar§ Managers are properly classified
as exempt employees.

The initial GraceandWard plaintiffs appealed certain rulings of the N.C. &&d Court to the United States Court of Appeaidlie Fourth
Circuit including the N.C. Federal Court’'s summargigment order against Irene Grace. On March 2212@he Fourth Circuit affirmed the
N.C. Federal Cou's decision finding that Ms. Grace was exempt fravertime compensation under the FLSA. The Fourthu@idid not
address the class certification issue in@maceandWardcases as Ms. Grace’s lawsuit was dismissed on énigsmin July 2013 , the claims
asserted by the remaining plaintiffs and opt-inthinGraceandWardcases were dismissed in conjunction with a resmiubf 39 appeals.

Presently, there are a total of 25 named plaindiffd/or opt-ins in the remaining cases in the Mfok which the N.C. Federal Court has not
decided the class certification or summary judgnigsue.

State Law Class and Collective Actions

The Company is currently a defendant in six add#lalass action lawsuits in six states allegireg tore Managers should be non-exempt
employees under various state laws. The plaintifthese cases seek recovery of overtime pay dajad damages, attorneys’ fees, and court
costs. Of these six cases, Family Dollar has defeatss certification in one of the cases, ortb@tases is preliminarily resolved, one of the
cases is currently certified as a class action theather three cases are in the early stagdtsoation.

e Cook, et al. v. Family Dollar Stores of Connectjdat., was filed in Superior Court in the State of Cartiwait on October 5, 2011,
seeking unpaid overtime for a class of currentfanther Connecticut Store Managers for alleged Viotes of the Connecticut
Minimum Wage Act. In December 2012 , briefing oasd certification was completed. On March 19, 20b& Court denied the
plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. The Cqany filed individual summary judgment motions agéach of the three named
plaintiffs. On May 23, 2013, the Court denied @@mpany’s summary judgment motion as to Cook, awdrot ruled on the
remaining plaintiffs. There is no trial date cuittgrset for any of the individual plaintiffs.

e Farley, et al. v. Family Dollar Stores of Coloradag., was filed in the United States District Court €@wlorado on January 7, 2012 ,
seeking unpaid overtime compensation for a clagsioent and former Colorado Store Managers. OrcMad, 2013 , the district
court granted plaintiff's motion for class certdioon. Class notice was issued in June 2013 . @iassvery concludes in December
2013 . The final pre-trial hearing is currently edhled for February 2014 .
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» Hegab v. Family Dollar Stores, Inwas filed in the United States District Court fhetDistrict of New Jersey on March 3, 2011 .
Plaintiff seeks recovery for himself and allegesiiyilarly situated Store Managers under New Jelaay Currently, this matter is
administratively dismissed without prejudice, amdatass has been certified. Despite the currertgoharal status, the counsel for the
class has indicated he intends to pursue the case.

» ltterly v. Family Dollar Stores of Pennsylvaniacli, which was formerly pending in the N.C. Federau@owas remanded back to 1
United States District Court for the Eastern Destdf Pennsylvania on February 8, 2012 . Plaintfis seeking unpaid overtime for a
class of current and former Pennsylvania Store Igarsawhom plaintiffs claim are not properly clagsifas exempt from overtime
pay under Pennsylvania law. Discovery closed ireR012 . The Company has a pending motion for susnjudgment before the
Court.

» Premo v. Family Dollar Stores of Massachusetts, , was filed in Worcester County Superior Courthia State of Massachusetts for
alleged violations of the Massachusetts overtimeda April 26, 2013 . Plaintiffs are seeking unpaiertime for a class of current
and former Massachusetts Store Managers whom iffieiciaim are not properly classified as exemptifrovertime under
Massachusetts law. The Company removed the cdedéral district court in Massachusetts on May2Z8,3 . Plaintiffs have
challenged the removal to federal court. The Chastnot made a final ruling on this issue.

* Walters et. al. v. Family Dollar Stores of Missquric ., alleging violations of the Missouri Minimum Wagaw, was originally filed
on January 26, 2010 , and is pending in the CikCaiirt of Jackson County, Missouri (the “Circuit€). On May 10, 2011 , the
Circuit Court certified the class under the Missddinimum Wage Law and common law. The Company ajgubthe class
certification ruling, but neither the Missouri Coof Appeals nor the Missouri Supreme Court agteduear the appeal. In July 2013,
the parties entered a preliminary agreement tdueshbis matter on a claims-made basis for a marino@i$2.5 million . All deadlines
have been stayed pending finalizing this prelimireagreement. A hearing for preliminary approvaltef settlement is currently set
November 7, 201.

Given the multiple dismissals obtained by the Comypaf the cases pending in the MDL and the prelanjrstage of the other state court wage
and hour cases, no reserve is appropriate for fithese cases, except Mfalters, which is the subject of a preliminary settlemagteement.

Gender Pay Litigation

Luanna Scott, et al. v. Family Dollar Stores, |

On October 14, 2008 , a complaint was filed inth8. District Court in Birmingham, Alabama captidr@cott, et al. v. Family Dollar Stores,
Inc. alleging discriminatory pay practices withpest to the Company's female Store Managers. Hsis was pled as a putative class action ¢
collective action under applicable statutes on lhetiall Family Dollar female Store Managers. Tiplaintiffs seek recovery of compensatory
and punitive money damages, recovery of attorrfegs'and equitable relief. The case was transfeéoréite Federal District Court, Western
District of North Carolina.

Presently, there are 48 named plaintiffs in thettStase. On January 13, 2012, the trial court gcitite Company’s Motion to Strike the class
allegations asserted in the Complaint based inygaoh the United State Supreme Court’s rulin®iukes v. Wal-Mart The plaintiffs’ filed an
appeal of the Court’s dismissal of the class atiega to the United States Court of Appeals forfeearth Circuit. On October 16, 2013, the
Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals partially revergbe trial court’s ruling. While the Fourth Circuigreed that the original Complaint should nof
proceed as a class action, it remanded the casestnacted the trial court to allow the amendmaithe complaint, and then consider whethel
the case based upon the amended complaint shaxddett as a class action. The Company is considésiogtions regarding additional
review of the Fourth Circuit’s ruling.

The Company has tendered the matter to its Employfeactices Liability Insurance (“EPLI") carriesrfcoverage under its EPLI policy. At
this time, the Company expects that the EPLI cawi# participate in any resolution of the caséeTCompany has exceeded its insurance

retention and any additional legal fees and se#fgmshould be covered by the EPLI carrier. Noruesis appropriate due to the preliminary
status of the case.

Other Matters
The Company is involved in numerous other legateealings and claims incidental to its businessudtieg litigation related to alleged
failures to comply with various state and federaptoyment laws, some of which are, or may be p&edlass or collective actions, and

litigation related to alleged personal or propelynage, as to which the Company carries insurance
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coverage and/or has established accrued liabiaseset forth in the Company's financial stateméitsile the ultimate outcome cannot be
determined, the Company currently believes thatdhproceedings and claims, both individually anthénaggregate, should not have a mai
effect on the Company's financial position, liqtydir results of operations. However, the outcornany litigation is inherently uncertain and,
if decided adversely to the Company, or, if the @any determines that settlement of such actioappsopriate, the Company may be subject
to liability that could have a material effect éretCompany's financial position, liquidity or resubf operations.

13. Stock-Based Compensation:

The Family Dollar Stores, Inc. 2006 Incentive Pftire “2006 Plan”) permits the granting of a variefycompensatory award types. The
Company currently grants non-qualified stock optiand performance share rights under the 2006 Blaares issued related to stock options
and performance share rights represent new isssafi@@mmon stock. A total of 10.9 million commdrases are reserved and available for
issuance under the 2006 Plan, plus any shares esvarttler the Company’s previous plan (1989 Ruralified Stock Option Plan) that expir
or were canceled or forfeited after the adoptiothef2006 Plan. As of August 31, 2013 , there v@eBemillion shares remaining available for
grant under the 2006 Plan. The Company also isshe®es under the 2006 Plan in connection with iremmpensation. These shares are
currently issued out of treasury stock and arenmaterial.

The Company'’s results for fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2@h2l fiscal 2011 include stock-based compensatiperese of $16.3 million , $15.9 million
and $14.7 million , respectively. These amountsrastided within SG&A on the Consolidated Statemsesftincome. Tax benefits recognized
in fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 fayckt-based compensation totaled $6.2 million , $5ilfion and $5.4 million , respectively.

Stock Options

The Company grants stock options to key employepsaaes not less than the fair market value ofGloenpany’s common stock on the grant
date. The Company’s practice for a number of yhassbeen to make a single annual grant to all grepboparticipating in the stock option
program and generally to make other grants onoimection with employment or promotions. Optiorgiee five years from the grant date
and are exercisable to the extent of 40% afteséioend anniversary of the grant and an additiod# & each of the following two annivers:
dates on a cumulative basis. Compensation cost@gnized on a straight-line basis, net of estithfdgeitures, over the requisite service
period. The Company uses the Black-Scholes optiming model to estimate the gramte fair value of each option. The fair valuestions
granted were estimated using the following weigtdedrage assumptions:

Years Ended

August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012 August 27, 2011
Expected dividend yield 1.41% 1.5€% 1.5¢%
Expected stock price volatility 33.2% 34.5% 33.8%
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 0.58% 0.74% 1.01%
Expected life of options (years) 4.3¢ 4.3¢ 4.4z

The expected dividend yield is based on the pregeannual dividend payment per share divided bytibek price on the grant date. Expected
stock price volatility is derived from an analysisthe historical and implied volatility of the Cqany’s publicly traded stock. The risk-free
interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rateélseogrant date with maturity dates approximatirggexpected life of the option on the grant
date. The expected life of the options is basedroanalysis of historical and expected future égersehavior, as well as certain demographic
characteristics. These assumptions are evaluateteaised for future grants, as necessary, toaefierket conditions and experience. There
were no significant changes made to the methodalsgy to determine the assumptions during fischB20'he weighted-average grant-date
fair value of stock options granted was $16.47myfiscal 2013 , $13.10 during fiscal 2012 and 6QMuring fiscal 2011 .

The following table summarizes the transactionseutide stock option plans during fiscal 2013 :
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Weighted-Average

Weighted- Remaining
Options Average Exercise Contractual Life in Aggregate Intrinsic

(in thousands, except per share amounts) Outstanding Price Years Value
Balance at August 25, 2012 2,017 $ 37.6(

Granted 53C 67.6¢

Exercised (755) 27.5¢

Forfeited (123 51.7¢

Expired 5) 28.5¢

Balance at August 31, 2013 1,66¢ $ 50.71 283 $ 30,08t
Exercisable at August 31, 2013 23€¢ $ 33.97 1.43 $ 8,771

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiseas $30.2 million during fiscal 2013 , $28.7 il during fiscal 2012 and $11.2 million
during fiscal 2011 . As of August 31, 2013, thenas approximately $10.3 million of unrecognized pemsation cost related to outstanding
stock options. The unrecognized compensation cibisbevrecognized over a weighted-average period.6fyears.

Performance Share Rights

The Company grants performance share rights tekgyloyees on an annual basis and in connectionemithloyment or promotion.
Performance share rights give employees the rigteédeive shares of the Company’s common stocKwttiee date based on the Company’s
performance relative to a peer group. Performascedasured based on two pre-tax metrics: Retugoity and Income Growth. The
Leadership Development and Compensation Commiftdedoard of Directors establishes the peer gengb performance metrics. The
performance share rights vest at the end of theimeance period (generally three years) and thesshare issued shortly thereafter. The actuc
number of shares issued can range from 0% to 2Gake@mployee’s target award depending on the @arylp performance relative to the
peer group.

The Company’s performance share rights have acgecandition and performance condition. The sere@dition is an explicit requisite
service period that is known at grant date aneiseglly three years. The performance conditidghesCompany’s performance against its pee
group. In accordance with ASC 718, the Companyeasthe performance share rights at the grant destedboon the most probable outcome of
payout and the most probable outcome is re-evaluateach reporting period. As a result, the Compdjusts compensation cost throughout
the term of the award to reflect its estimate eftiost probable payout of shares. Upon vestinggpipeopriate number of shares are issued at
compensation cost reflects the total grant datevdue of those shares.

The following table summarizes the transactionseutide performance share rights program durin@fig013 :

Weighted
Performance Average
Share Rights Grant-Date
(in thousands, except per share amounts) Outstanding Fair Value
Nonvested—August 25, 2012 447  $ 42.8¢
Granted 17t 64.3¢
Vested (239) 29.9:
Cancellations (37 51.81
Performance adjustment 75 N/A
Nonvested—August 31, 2013 421 ¢ 54.2¢

The grant-date fair value of the performance shigtds is based on the stock price on the grar. ddte weighted-average grateate fair valu
of performance share rights granted was $64.3sddiscal 2013 , $52.42 during fiscal 2012 and $8&luring fiscal 2011 . Compensation
cost is recognized on a straight-line basis, neistimated forfeitures, over the requisite serpegod and adjusted quarterly to reflect the
ultimate number of shares expected to be issueslpEformance adjustments of performance sharésr@fistanding in the table above
represent the performance adjustment for sharéed/dsiring the period. The total fair value of penfiance share rights vested was $16.4
million during fiscal 2013 , $22.4 million duringstal 2012 and $15.0 million during fiscal 2011s &f August 31, 2013, there was
approximately $15.9 million of unrecognized compitn cost related to outstanding performance shigings, based on the Company’s most
recent performance analysis. The unrecognized cosapien cost will be recognized over a weighted-age period of 1.7 years.
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14. Shareholders' Equity:
Stock Repurchases

During fiscal 2013, the Company purchased a tdtal2 million shares of its common stock at a afs$75.0 million , all of which were
purchased on the open market.

During fiscal 2012, the Company purchased a tdtal2 million shares of its common stock at a @is$191.6 million , all of which were
purchased on the open market.

During fiscal 2011, the Company purchased a tdtaBd® million shares of its common stock at a afs$670.5 million , of which 8.6 million
shares were purchased on the open market at afc®$20.5 million . On October 5, 2010 , the Compantered into an accelerated share
repurchase agreement with a large financial irtgitu In connection with the agreement, the Compaage a prepayment of $250.0 million to
the financial institution and immediately receivied million shares ( 80%f the prepayment amount). The financial institntpurchased shai
of the Companys common stock in the open market over an avergggnigd in order to cover its position with respecshares it borrowed fi
the initial delivery and for any shares payablerupettiement. Upon settlement, another 0.9 mikibares were delivered to the Company.

All shares are purchased pursuant to share remechehorizations approved by the Board of Directdn January 17, 2013, the Company
announced that the Board of Directors authorizeddbmpany to purchase up to an additional $300amibf the Company’s outstanding
common stock. On September 28, 2011, the Compamyuziced that the Board of Directors authorizeddbespany to purchase up to $250
million of the Company’s outstanding common sto&g&.of August 31, 2013, the Company had $370.8aniltemaining under current share
repurchase authorizations.

There is no expiration date related to the abofergaced remaining authorizations. Shares purchaseéer the share repurchase authorizatior
are generally held in treasury or are cancelledratdned to the status of authorized but unisshades.

Retirement of Treasury Shat

During fiscal 2012, the Company retired 29.4 millishares of its common stock held in treasury. Sifeges were returned to the status of
authorized but unissued shares. As a result, #astiry stock balance decreased by approximatel® Billion . As a part of the retirement, the
Company reduced its Common Stock, Capital in Exoé8%ar, and Retained Earnings balances by appat&ign$ 2.9 million , $ 60.1 million
and $ 1.1 billion , respectively. Refer to Noteot the Company's accounting policy for retiremeritseasury shares.

Stockholders' Rights Plan

On March 2, 2011 , the Company adopted a stockisildghts plan whereby the Board of Directorstué Company authorized and declared
dividend distribution of one right for each outstarg share of common stock of the Company to stolcidrs of record at the close of business
on March 2, 2011 . On February 24, 2012 , the Boaibirectors approved, and the Company enterey art amendment to the stockholders'
rights plan to extend the expiration date of tights to March 2, 2013 . On November 16, 2012 Bibard of Directors approved, and the
Company entered into, an amendment to the stoc&hsldghts plan to accelerate the expiration déatbe rights to November 16, 2012 ,
thereby terminating the stockholder's rights plan.

Dividends

During fiscal 2013 , the Company paid cash divideofd$0.94 per share for a total of $108.3 millidduring fiscal 2012 , the Company paid
cash dividends of $0.78 per share for a total df4®nillion . During fiscal 2011 , the Company pa&ksh dividends of $0.67 per share for a
total of $83.4 million .

15. Earnings per Share:

Basic net income per common share is computed\bglidg net income by the weighted average numbahafes outstanding during each
period. Diluted net income per common share gi¥ieseto all securities representing potential coonmshares that were dilutive and
outstanding during the period. Certain stock oggtiand performance share rights were excluded frencalculation of diluted net income per
common share because their effects were antiddift.5 million , 0.3 million and 0.3 million sharéor fiscal 2013, fiscal 2012 and fiscal
2011, respectively). In the calculation of diluteet income per common
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share, the denominator includes the number of iatidit common shares that would have been outstgnfitihe Company’s outstanding
dilutive stock options and performance share riglats been exercised, as determined pursuant teethigury stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation abiz and diluted net income per common share:

Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share amounts) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012 August 27, 2011

Basic Net Income Per Share:

Net income $ 44357 3 422,240 $ 388,44!
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 115,25: 117,09° 123,36(
Net income per common share—basic $ 3.8 % 3.61 % 3.1t
Diluted Net Income Per Share:

Net income $ 443578 3 422,240 $ 388,44!
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 115,25: 117,09° 123,36(
Effect of dilutive securities—stock options 30C 52t 677
Effect of dilutive securities—performance sharentig 258 43€ 44¢
Weighted average shares—diluted 115,80! 118,05¢ 124,48
Net income per common share—diluted $ 3.8z % 3.5¢ % 3.1Z

16. Segment Information:

The Company operates a chain of more than 7,908rgemerchandise retail discount stores in 46 stagrving the basic needs of value-
conscious customers. The stores are supporteceisgretistribution centers and one Store SupporteCeAll stores operate under the Family
Dollar name and are substantially the same in tefinsize, merchandise, customers, distribution@etations. The Company has no
franchised locations or other lines of business.

All of the Company’s operations are located intheted States with the exception of certain sog@ntities located in Asia and Europe. The

foreign operations solely support domestic operatiand are not material. The Company manages #giedss on the basis of one operating
segment and therefore, has only one reportable exgigifihe following table presents net sales bysela®f similar products.

Years Ended

(in thousands) August 31, 2013 August 25, 2012 August 27, 2011
Classes of similar products:
Consumables $ 7,523,28! $ 6,436,71' $ 5,686,571
Home Products 1,053,67! 1,067,54. 1,084,48I
Apparel and Accessories 785,38 822,83 854,60:
Seasonal and Electronics 1,029,11. 1,003,901 922,17
Net Sales $ 10,391,45 % 9,331,000 $ 8,547,83!

The following table describes the Company’s prodatégories in more detail:
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Consumables

Home Products

Apparel and Accessories

Seasonal and Electronics

Household chemicals

Paper products

Food

Health and beauty aids

Hardware and automotive supplies
Pet food and supplies

Tobacco

Domestics, including blankets, sheets and towels
Housewares

Giftware

Home décor

Men’s clothing
Women'’s clothing
Boys’ and girls’ clothing
Infants’ clothing

Shoes

Fashion accessories

Toys
Stationery and school supplies
Seasonal goods

Personal electronics, including pre-paid cellulaomes and services

17. Unaudited Summaries of Quarterly Results:

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2013

Net sales

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per common shdte
2012

Net sales

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per common shdbe

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter

@ Quarter Quarter @

$ 242168 $ 2,893,99 $ 2,573,500 $ 2,502,26!

826,79: 967,05( 892,45¢ 868,44:
80,27¢ 140,14! 120,93t 102,21:
0.6¢ 1.21 1.0¢ 0.8¢

$ 2,148,28 $ 2,458,631 $ 235995 $ 2,364,12!

757,57 857,39¢ 845,27 799,70:
80,35( 136,41¢ 124,54( 80,93:
0.6¢ 1.1% 1.0¢ 0.6¢

(1) Figures represent diluted earnings per share. imecs the quarterly net income per common share medequal the annual net income per common shaéadrounding.

(2) The second quarter of fiscal 2013 included 14 weekspared to 13 weeks in the second quarter adlf&@12. The extra week in the second quarterso&fi2013 contributed approximately $189 millian

net sales and $0.07 of earnings per diluted share.

(3)  The fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 includes a omeeti$5.0 million favorable accounting adjustmenated to certain vendor allowances.

18. Related Party Transactions:

There were no material related party transactiamisg fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 or fiscal 2011 .

59




Table of Contents

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None noted.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdtetiesigned to provide reasonable assurancetbahation required to be disclos
in our periodic reports to the Securities and ExggaCommission (“SEC”) is recorded, processed, sarzed, and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and formsthaati such information is accumulated and commueit&d management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggeopriate to allow timely decisions regarding riegd disclosures.

We evaluated the design and operating effectiveofesar disclosure controls and procedures as @fusu31, 2013 This evaluation wa
performed under the supervision and with the pipditon of management, including our Chief Execait®¥fficer and Chief Financial Officer.
Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer concluded that oischbsure controls and procedures were
effective as of August 31, 2013 .

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigaing for the Company. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process desdjto provide reasonable assurance regardin@liability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. Internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies andcedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance afndscthat in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the Company; (ii) provide reasonadd@rance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statesin accordance with generally accepted acaugiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are made only in aermel with authorizations of management and dirsaibthe Company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetgction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opaltion of the Compang’assets that cot
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in conditions c
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management (with the participation of the principaécutive officer and principal financial officeXynducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting based on the frameworkriternal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrike Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on thaduation, management concluded
that the Company’s internal control over financgorting was effective as of August 31, 2013 .

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent regsfrublic accounting firm that audited the Cordatied Financial Statements
included in this Report, has also audited the &ffeness of the Company’s internal control oveafficial reporting as of August 31, 2013, as
stated in their attestation report which is incldideder Item 8 of this Report.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounhg Firm

Included in Item 8 of this Report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in the Company’s internatabover financial reporting during the Companidsirth fiscal quarter that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@ancial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
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None noted.

61




Table of Contents

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item as to the @amy’s directors, director nominees, audit committearfirial expert, audit committe
and procedures for stockholders to recommend direcminees will be included in the Company’s prexgtement to be filed for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held in January 2@id “ 2014 Proxy Statement”), under the captidakettion of Directors” and “Corporate
Governance Matters and Committees of the Boardirfcibrs” and is incorporated by reference her€ire information required by this item
as to compliance by the Company’s directors, exeewtfficers and beneficial owners of the Compargsmmon Stock with Section 16(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 also will beuded in the 2014 Proxy Statement under the capSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” and also is incorporated indog reference.

Executive Officers
The section entitled “Executive Officers of the Guamy” in Part | of this Report is incorporated lejarence herein.
Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted: (i) a Code of Ethicsapplies to the principal executive officer and sefiinancial officers, including the
principal financial officer, the principal accoumgi officer and the controller; (ii) a Code of Busiis Conduct that governs the actions of all
Company employees, including officers; and (iiB@ard of Directors Code of Business Conduct appleto all directors (collectively the
“Codes of Conduct”). The Codes of Conduct are mbstehe Investors section of the Company’s welatit@ww.familydollar.com. The
Company will provide a copy of the Codes of Condoainy stockholder upon request. Any amendmendasiddor any waiver from a provision
of any of the Codes of Conduct granted to any threexecutive officer or any senior financial offr, must be approved by the Board of
Directors, or a Committee thereof, and will be tised on the Company’s website within three busimegys following the amendment or
waiver. The information contained on or connectethe Company’s website is not incorporated byregfee into this Form 10-K and should
not be considered part of this or any other reftat the Company files with or furnishes to the SEC

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be indied in the Company’s 2014 Proxy Statement, undecaiptions “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis,” “ 2013 Summary Compepsaliable,” “ 2013 Grants of Plan-Based Awards,” ‘fifayment and Severance
Agreements,” “ 2013 Outstanding Equity Awards a&tcil Year End,” “ 2013 Option Exercises and Stoelktéd,” “Non-Qualified Deferred
Compensation,” “Potential Payments upon Terminabdio@hange in Control,” “Director Compensation,tdiCompensation Committee
Report” and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item as to seguitvnership by beneficial owners and managemertwiincluded in the Company’s
2014 Proxy Statement, under the caption “Ownershtpe Company’s Securities” and is incorporatectimeby reference. The information
required by this item as to securities authorizzdssuance under equity compensation plans alédevincluded in said proxy statement un
the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Informatiamd is also incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item will be indied in the Company’s 2014 Proxy Statement, undecdptions “Transactions with
Related Persons” and “Corporate Governance MadtedsCommittees of the Board of Directors” and tomporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be indied in the Company’s 2014 Proxy Statement, undecdption “Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm’s Fees and Ses/iand is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(&) Documents filed as part of this rep
1. See Part ll—Item 8—"Financial Statements anppfementary Data—Index to Consolidated Financiate®hents”, of this
Report.

2. All schedules for which provision is made ie #ipplicable accounting regulations of the SECGhateequired under the related
instructions, are inapplicable or the informatisnricluded in the Consolidated Financial Statememtd therefore, have been
omitted.

The Financial Statements of Family Dollar Stores,,|(Parent Company) are omitted because thetragiss primarily a
holding company and all subsidiaries included md¢bnsolidated financial statements being filedhaaggregate, do not he
minority equity and/or indebtedness to any pergberathan the registrant or its consolidated suasa&s in amounts which
together exceed 5 percent of the total assetsoasnsby the most recent year-end consolidated balaheet

3. The Exhibits listed below in item (|
(b) The accompanying Index to Exhibits is incorpordietkin by referenc
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC.
(Registrant)
Date: October 28, 2013 By /sl HOWARD R. LEVINE

Howard R. Levine

Chairman of the Board
(Chief Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed &ydhowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dalieated.

Signature Title Date
Chairman of the Board, Chief October 28, 2013

Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl HOWARD R. LEVINE
Howard R. Levine

Executive Vice President— October 28, 2013
/sl  MARY A. W INSTON Chief Financial Officer
Mary A. Winston (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ MARK R.BERNSTEIN Director October 28, 2013
Mark R. Bernstein
/s/  PAMELA L. D AVIES Director October 28, 2013
Pamela L. Davies
/s/ SHARON A LLRED D ECKER Director October 28, 2013
Sharon Allred Decker
/s/ EDWARD C. DoLBY Director October 28, 2013
Edward C. Dolby
/sl GLENN A. EISENBERG Director October 28, 2013
Glenn A. Eisenberg
/s/ EDWARD P. GARDEN Director October 28, 2013
Edward P. Garden
/s/ GEORGE R. M AHONEY , JR. Director October 28, 2013
George R. Mahoney, Jr.
/sl JAMES G. M ARTIN Director October 28, 2013
James G. Martin
/s/ HARVEY M ORGAN Director October 28, 2013
Harvey Morgan
/s/ DALE C. PonD Director October 28, 2013
Dale C. Pond
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibits incorporated by reference:

3.1

4.4

4.€

10.1

10.Z

10.c

10.¢

10.5

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated Novern®) 2006 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company&pBrt on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended August 26, 2006)

Bylaws of Family Dollar Stores, Inc., as amendeadtigh March 2, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to then@any’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on March 3, 2011)

Sections FOURTH, SIXTH and SEVENTH of the ComparB&stated Certificate of Incorporation (includedeagibit 3.1) and
Articles Il, VII, VIII, Xl and XIV of the Companys Bylaws (included as Exhibit 3.3)

Form of certificate representing shares of the Camygjs Common Stock (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the @amy’s Form 10-K filing
for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2005)

Rights Agreement, dated as of March 2, 2011, beivireenily Dollar Stores, Inc. and American Stockn&fer & Trust Compan)
LLC, which includes the Form of Certificate of Dgsation, Preferences and Rights of Series A JUraaoticipating Preferred
Stock as Exhibit A and the Form of Right Certifeeats Exhibit B (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Compan@urrent Report on Form
8-K filed on March 3, 2011)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 24, 201thddrights Agreement, dated as of March 2, 201tlyden Family Dollar
Stores, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trusi@any, LLC (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Companyl&@nt Report on Form
8-K on February 24, 2012)

Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 16, 201thadrights Agreement, dated as of March 2, 201an@nded by
Amendment No. 1, dated February 24, 2012, betweenili Dollar Stores, Inc. and American Stock Trans§ Trust Company,
LLC (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curréteport on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2012)

Indenture between Family Dollar Stores, Inc. anfl.UlBank National Association, as trustee, dateaf danuary 28, 2011 (filed as
Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the qeaended February 26, 2011)

First Supplemental Indenture between the Compadyta8. Bank National Association, as Trustee, datedf January 28, 2011
(filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Reépm Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 28120

Form of Global Note 5.00% Senior Note due 2021liced as part of Exhibit 4.5 above)(filed as Extvbl to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC onulay 28, 2011)

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of Septembe0@3%, Between Family Dollar Stores, Inc., FamilylBolinc., and the variot
purchasers named therein, relating to $169,000600D% Series 2005-A Senior Notes, Tranche A, dyseBser 27, 2015; and,
$81,000,000 5.24% Series 2005-A Senior Notes, Trau; due September 27, 2015 (filed as Exhibit 1@1he Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 27, 2010)

First Amendment dated as of November 17, 201(hed\lote Purchase Agreement dated as of Septemp20@3, between
Family Dollar Stores, Inc. and the various purchesamed therein, relating to $169,000,000 5.41%ieS@005-A Senior Notes,
Tranche A, due September 27, 2015 and $81,000,@d06Series 2005-A Senior Notes, Tranche B, dugeSder 27, 2015
(filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 104D the quarter ended November 27, 2010)

$400 Million Credit Agreement dated as of Novembgr 2010, by and among Family Dollar Stores, liscBarrower, Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrathgent, and the lenders party thereto (filed asiltikia0.5 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 27, 2010)

First Amendment dated as of August 17, 2011, tép¢@0 Million Credit Agreement dated November 101@, by and among
Family Dollar Stores, Inc., as Borrower, and WeEigggo Bank, National Association, as Administrathgent, and the lenders
party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Compsurorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended AugustZ¥]11)

$350,000,000 Credit Agreement dated August 24, 26€6veen the Company and Family Dollar, Inc., es®vers, and
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Administ@iAgent, Swingline Lender and Fronting Bank, aadous other Lenders
named therein (filed as Exhibit 10 to the Compameport on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 2806)
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10.€

10.7

*10.8

*10.9

*10.1C

*10.11

*10.12

*10.18

*10.14

*10.15

*10.1€

*10.17

*10.1€

*10.1¢

*10.2C

*10.21

*10.22

*10.23

*10.24

*10.25

*10.2€

Second Amendment dated as of November 17, 202BetCredit Agreement dated August 24, 2006, betwleefamily Dollar
Stores, Inc., as Borrower, and Wells Fargo Bankiddal Association (successor by merger to WachBaak, National
Association), as Administrative Agent, and varitersders named therein (filed as Exhibit 10.6 toGlenpany’s Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended November 27, 2010)

$250 million 364-Day Credit Agreement between tlenpany and Family Dollar, Inc., as Borrowers, anactbvia Bank,
National Association, as Administrative Agent andigline Lender, and various other lenders namedeth (filed as Exhibit
10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quartereendovember 28, 2009)

Summary of compensation arrangements of the Conpaayned executive officers for fiscal 2011 (fileader Item 5.02 in the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with ®EC on
October 15, 2010)

Summary of compensation arrangements of the Conpaaymned executive officers for fiscal 2012 (fileader Item 5.02 in the
Company’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed wite BEC on September 9, 2011 and September 28, 2011)

Summary of compensation arrangements of the Compaayned executive officers for fiscal 2013 (filedder Item 5.02 in the
Company'’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed wite BEC on October 15, 2012)

Summary of compensation arrangements of the Compaayned executive officers for fiscal 2014 (fileader Item 5.02 in the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with ®EC on October 21, 2013)

Family Dollar Stores, Inc., 2006 Incentive Plateias Appendix B to the Company’s Definitive Pré@tatement filed with the
SEC on December 7, 2010)

Family Dollar Stores, Inc. 2006 Incentive Plan Galiides for Annual Cash Bonus Awards (filed as EitHib.2 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 26, 2012)

Retirement Agreement dated September 30, 2002 geetthe Company and Leon Levine (filed as Exhibitalthe Company’s
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on OctobeQ02)

Policy Regarding Tax Adjustments for Certain SermeeaBenefits (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Comparfigeport on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on November 21, 2008)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Comypand its Directors (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Bempany’s Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2008)

Employment Agreement effective October 7, 2008wket the Company and Howard R. Levine (filed asiliikh0.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC®@ctober 14, 2008)

Employment Agreement effective December 28, 20&Ryben the Company and Howard R. Levine (filed dslit 10.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the SECJamuary 3, 2013)

Employment Agreement between Michael K. Bloom aathify Dollar Stores, Inc. dated September 26, 28iled as Exhibit
10.1 to the Company'’s Current Report on Form 8kdfon September 28, 2011)

Form of Severance Agreement for Executive Vice iBesds (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s R¢pnm Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on October 14, 2008)

Form of Severance Agreement for Executive Vice iBesds (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Rejpo Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on October 15, 2012)

Form of Severance Agreement for Senior Vice Presgd@iled as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Remort~orm 8-K filed with
the SEC on October 14, 2008)

Form of Severance Agreement for Senior Vice Presgd@iled as Exhibit 10.36 to the Company’s FordaKLfiled with the SEC
on October 19, 2012)

Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan, amended aswadber 2, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10(v) to the Camygs Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended August 28, 2004)

Summary of Family Dollar Stores, Inc., Executivgflemental Disability Income Plan (filed as Exhib@.25 to the Company’s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2005

Family Dollar Stores, Inc., Executive Life Plarig¢i as Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s Form 10-Ktfa fiscal year ended
August 27, 2005)
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*10.27 Relocation Policy applicable to executive officefgthe Company (filed as Exhibit 10.27 to the Compa Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended August 27, 2005)

*10.28 Amended and Restated Family Dollar CompensatiorafPlan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Comparitsm 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 1, 2008)

*10.29  Family Dollar Stores Inc., 2006 Incentive Plan Dimes’ Share Awards Guidelines (filed as Exhibitll® the Company’s Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 21, 2006)

*10.30 Family Dollar Stores Inc., 2006 Incentive Plan 208#h-Qualified Stock Option Grant Program (filedasibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the SECJamuary 25, 2006)

*10.31 Family Dollar Stores, Inc., 2006 Incentive Plan @alines for Long Term Incentive Performance ShaghR Awards (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the tiglaended May 26, 2012)

*10.32  Form of Performance Share Rights Award Certifidatards (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Remm Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on September 29, 2005)

*10.33  Stipulation and Agreement of Compromise, Settlenagwlt Release (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the CompaRgport on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on June 26, 2007)

*10.34  Agreement dated September 28, 2011 between Farollgristores, Inc. and Trian Fund Management, LTRan Management
GP, LLC, certain funds managed by Trian Managerhéhtand Nelson Peltz, Peter W. May and Edwardddén (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onfk&-K filed on September 29, 2011)

*10.35 Severance Agreement between Mary A. Winston andlfF&vllar Stores, Inc. dated April 5, 2012 (filed Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Affil 2012)

10.36  $300 million Credit Agreement dated as of August20l1, by and among Family Dollar Stores, IncBagower, and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association as Administrathgent and the lenders party thereto (filed as Bxii®.31 to the Company's
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2011

10.37 First Amendment dated as of February 20, 2013800 Million Credit Agreement dated August 1712, by and among
Family Dollar Stores, Inc., as Borrower, and Weisgo Bank, National Association as Administrathgent and the lenders
party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the FormQ@or the quarter ended March 2, 2013)

10.38 Second Amendment dated as of February 20, 201Bet$400 Million Credit Agreement dated November 20710, by and
among Family Dollar Stores, Inc., as Borrower, 8ells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Admiigve Agent, and the
lenders party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to @@mmpany's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Mar&@023)

Exhibits filed herewith:

21 Subsidiaries of the Company
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursudo Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the 8@suExchange Act of 1934,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sark@rkes Act of 2002
31.z Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursudo Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the 8&=uExchange Act of 1934,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@arkes- Act of 2002
32 Certification of Principal Executive Officer andiftipal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. {88t 1350 as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062

101 Financial statements from the annual report on FiDAX of the Company for the year ended
August 31, 2013, filed on October 28, 2013, foredinh XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statements of meg (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iii) the Clidated Balance Sheets, (iv) the Consolidated Btatgs of Shareholders’
Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statements of CaslwEland (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financiate®tents

* Exhibit represents a management contract or @nsgtory plan
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FAMILY DOLLAR STORES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

Listing of Active Corporations and other Entities

Entity

State of Incorporation/ Organization

Exhibit 21

Family Dollar Distribution, LLC

Family Dollar GC, LLC

Family Dollar Holdings, Inc.

Family Dollar Insurance, Inc.

Family Dollar Merchandising, L.P.

Family Dollar Operations, Inc.

Family Dollar Services, Inc.

Family Dollar Stores of Alabama, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Arkansas, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Colorado, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Connecticut, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of D.C., Inc.

Family Dollar Stores of Delaware, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Florida, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Georgia, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Indiana, L.P.
Family Dollar Stores of lowa, Inc.

Family Dollar Stores of Kentucky, Ltd.
Family Dollar Stores of Louisiana, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Maryland, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Massachusetts, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Michigan, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Mississippi, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Missouri, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of New Jersey, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of New Mexico, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of New York, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of North Carolina, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Ohio, Inc.

Family Dollar Stores of Oklahoma, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Pennsylvania, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Rhode Island, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of South Carolina, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of South Dakota, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Tennessee, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Texas, LLC
Family Dollar Stores of Vermont, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Virginia, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of West Virginia, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores of Wisconsin, Inc.
Family Dollar Stores, Inc.

Family Dollar Trucking, Inc.

Family Dollar, Inc.

FDO Trading International Hong Kong Limited

FDO Trading International LLC
Midwood Brands LLC

Shenzhen Tar Heel Information Consultancy Limited

Tar Haal Tradina Intarnatinnal Haldinna 1 imit:

Texas
North Carolina
North Carolina
South Carolina

Delaware
North Carolina
North Carolina

Alabama
Arkansas
Colorado
Coatieut
District of Columbia
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Indiana
lowa
Kentucky
Louisia
Maryland
ddabusetts
Michigan
Missippi
Missouri
Newsdg

New Meo

New York

moCarolina

Ohio

Oklahoma

Payvania

Radsland

uBoCarolina

Sobiakota

Tereess
Texas
Vermont
Virginia

Waérginia

Wiscons

Delaware
North Carolina
North Carolina

HpKong
North Carolina
North Carolina

People's Republic of China

HAann WAnn



Tar Heel Trading International Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong
Tar Heel Trading International S.a.r.l. Luxenatip



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Fora8 $File Numbers 333-135857, 333-122201 and
333-105005) and the Registration Statement on F8v(File Number 333-171843) of Family Dollar Swrinc., of our report dated October
28, 2013 relating to the financial statements &edeffectiveness of internal control over financegorting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charlotte, North Carolina
October 28, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a)
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Howard R. Levine, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Report on FormK@f Family Dollar Stores, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does nataiomny untrue statement of a material fact ort émstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiloleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdetemd procedures (as defined in Exche
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcbgarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and procetiuiee designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtist report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrastfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabm@ that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over ficgl reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent ev@tuaf internal control over financial reporting, the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal oboirer financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finangiatmation; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisattifole in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: October 28, 2013

/s/ Howard R. Levine

Howard R. Levine
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a)
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Mary A. Winston, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Report on FormK@f Family Dollar Stores, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does nataiomny untrue statement of a material fact ort émstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiloleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdetemd procedures (as defined in Exche
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcbgarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and procetiuiee designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtist report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrastfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabm@ that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over ficgl reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent ev@tuaf internal control over financial reporting, the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal oboirer financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finangiatmation; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisattifole in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: October 28, 2013

/sl Mary A. Winston
Mary A. Winston
Executive Vice President — Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourdiOfficer)




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Report on Form 10-K of Fanflollar Stores, Inc. (the “Company”) for the anhperiod ended August 31, 2013, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Form 10-K”), Howard R. Levine,i€ftExecutive Officer of the Company and Mary A.
Winston, Chief Financial Officer of the Companyclkeaertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135Gdapted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOxI
Act of 2002, that:
¢ the Form 1K fully complies with the requirements of Sectio®(4) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4; 381
« the information contained in the Form 10-K faipresents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: October 28, 2013

/s/ Howard R. Levine

Howard R. Levine
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Mary A. Winston
Mary A. Winston
Executive Vice President — Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accourdgi Officer)

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyél be retained by the Company and furnisheth
Securities and Exchange Commission or its stafhupquest.



